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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Background

Clearfield, Inc. (“Clearfield” or the “Company”jormerly APA Enterprises, Inc., is a Minnesota argiion which was founded in 1979. (
corporate headquarters are located at 5480 Nathame LNorth, Suite 120, Plymouth, MN 55442, and oorperate website
www.clearfieldconnection.com. The information dahie on our website is not part of this ReporbuYtan access, free of charge, our fil
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, inoweéur annual report on Form 10-K, our quartedparts on Form 1@, current repor
on Form 8-K and any other amendments to those t®pbrough the “About Clearfield” link at our wetes or at the Commissios'website ¢
WWW.SeC.gov.

Description of Business

Clearfield, Inc. manufactures, markets and sellsead-toend fiber management and enclosure platform thasamates, distributes a
protects fiber as it moves from the inside planttte outside plant and all the way to the homejnass and cell site. The Company
extended this product line with a fiber deliverpgdrm of optical cable, connectors and microdbat telivers fiber to environments previot
not economically or environmentally viable. Then@pany has successfully established itself as wewalded supplier to its target marke
broadband service providers, including independecdl exchange carriers (telephone), multiple senoperators (cable), wireless ser
providers, non-traditional providers and municipalned utilities. Clearfield has expanded its peidofferings and broadened its custo
base during the last five years.

By aligning its in-house engineering and technicalwledge alongside its customengeds, the Company has been able to develop, das
and enhance products from design through productiubstantially all of the final build and asseynls completed at Clearfielsl'plant ir
Plymouth, Minnesota with manufacturing support franmetwork of domestic and global manufacturingtrgas. Clearfield specializes
producing these products on both a quigkt and scheduled delivery basis. The Companjogs@ hybrid sales model with some sales r
directly to the customer, some made through tieodistribution partners and some sales througdiral equipment suppliers who private le
its products.

Products

Clearview Cassette

The Clearview™ Cassette, a patented technologtheigmain building block of the Compasyproduct platform. The value of the build
block approach is that Clearfield is the only compto provide the needs of every leg of the telemamications network with a single build
block architecture, reducing the customexsst of deployment by reducing labor costs assediatth training and reducing inventory carry
costs.

Clearview Classic and Clearview Blu€learview Classic and Clearview Blue, is a systdrfive parts that nest together in the cassett®ir
housing to support a wide range of applicationartsPcan be added or removed as needed to supgmorérivironment in which it
deployed. Clearview Blue, while fully compatiblétivClearview Classic, is designed for the utmastriodularity and scalability. It buil
upon the Clearview Classic by offering a smalletjfoint and integrated slack storage and splicimgfionality.

Clearview xPAK:Engineered to land small port count fiber termimagi and optical components, the patented xPAK igpshd flat an
unassembled. Following simple pictorial user mstions, a technician will assemble the device tatam his field requirements at

installation site. Application environments inctudell backhaul, business class service delivery, node segtient fiber exhaust scenari
utility sub-stations or fiber-to-the-desk deployrmen




Connectivity and Optical Components

The Clearview system consolidates, distributesgntects fibers as they move from the inside plarthe home and business. These fiber
either connectorized directly for cabledable deployment or are connectorized onto opticaiponents that may amplify or divide the sig
they carry. We provide products that meet a custtntable-to-cable deployment or optical compomeds.

Cable-to-Cable DeploymenEiber Deep is a class of fiber assemblies that guaranteesipeaince at .2dB insertion losguly half that of the
industry standard. This metric extends the lirdslbudget effectively, extending the distance upbicth fiber can be deployed. In additi
this 2dB improvement in optical budget reduces posssumption by 10%. The power savings, multiplyy even a small thousand hc
network, is a significant contribution to a comntyts “go-green” efforts.

Optical ComponentsClearfield packages optical components for sigralpting, splitting, termination, multiplexing, deftiplexing anc
attenuation for a seamless integration withinitteif management platform. This valadded packaging allows the customer to source &
single supplier and reduces space requirements. pftducts are built and tested to meet the ss$tiételustry standards ensuring custor
trouble-free performance in extreme outside plantrenments.

FieldSmart

Utilizing the Clearview Cassette and XxPAK as buitgblocks, FieldSmart is a series of panels, cabirveall boxes and other enclosures
house the Clearview components to provide a camgistesign from the inside plant of the telco’sritcal office” or cable television’s “head-
end”, all the way through the outside plant to the aceegwork and through to the home. At each lechefrtetwork, the FieldSmart platfo
delivers a modular and scalable architecture tHatva the service provider to align their capit@jugoment expenditures alongside t
subscriber revenues.

Inside Plant: The FieldSmart Fiber Crossover Distribution Sgst@-xDS) and high density FieldSmart FxHD providesnplete fibe
management modularity and scalability across ther fnetwork. Using the Clearview building blockpapach, each fiber management eler
provides modularity of physical fiber protectiontime environment in which it is placed. Easily figared for initial placement and scal
from 12-ports to a full rack of 1728erts, the FieldSmart FXDS requires only four uridplocks to configure initial deployment. The udear
places what is needed on the frame as subscrikerrgdes dictate. The FxXHD is an integrated fim@magement solution delivered via
Clearview Blue Cassette. With instant accessltoaaisettes, adapters, and jumpers, the framesigrosl as a front access frame, meanir
installation is done from one side of the framevjting the option to reclaim the aisle space regpliior frame solutions that require rear ac
— and to use that space for other equipment or nmramaes. The FxHD can be placed against a walle dagdata center clocatior
environments, or back to back.

Outside PlantThe FieldSmart Fiber Scalability Center (FSC) madular and scalable outside plant cabinet thatallrollout of Fiber-to-the-
Premise services by communication service providatisout a large initial expense. Each outsidenpltzabinet stores feeder and distribu
splices, splitters, connectors and slack cablelynaatd compactly, utilizing fieldested designs to maximize bend radius protectionpecta
access, ease of cable routing and physical protecthereby minimizing the risk of fiber damageheTFSC product, with the Clearvi
cassette at its heart, has been designed to sithléhe application environment as demand requaresto reduce service tuup time for th
end-user.

Access NetworlFieldSmart Fiber Delivery Point (FDP) is a seriégemclosure systems that incorporates the deligéfiper connectivity to th
neighborhood or business district in the most effgetive footprint possible. This family of wattount enclosures provides 12 to 144 por
connectivity for multidwelling unit fiber deployments, fiber demarcati@gcurity systems (CCTV), telecommunications rooeeds an
horizontal/intermediate cross-connects.




Access Networ: FieldSmart Small Count Delivery (SCD) is a sené®nclosure systems that are packaged to makinsmall count fibe
more cost-effective and efficient than previousipught possible. This family of wathount enclosures, panels and drop cable casesdg
up to 12 ports of connectivity when fiber managetmiencritical but higheount density is required. The FieldSmart SCDaigéted fc
application environments such as cell backhauliness class service delivery, node segmentatibar xhaust in a field pedestal, ssthtior
turn-up or fiber-to-the-desk deployment.

FieldShield

FieldShield is a patemgending fiber delivery method aimed at reducingdbst of broadband deployment. FieldShield takdsistry standa
glass and makes it easier and less expensivettdlinBieldShield starts with a ruggedized microddesigned to support all aerial, direct b
and inside plant “last milefieeds. Created from the most rugged HDPE polyniéegiShield Microduct is strong enough to be pthasing
traditional methods of boring and plowing, leveragexisting conduit placement equipment, as welieger, less disruptive technologies ¢
as micro trenching or saw cutting.

FieldShield Pushable Fiber easily slips throughrtheroduct's smooth inner wall. Utilizing bentsensitive glass, FieldShield Pushable F
is available in a variety of fiber counts: 1 to fit®rs in a 3mm jacket and up to 24 fibers in a 4ijaoket. Available in bulk reels or fact
terminated, FieldShield offers total installatidexibility. FieldShield Pushable Fiber can be pagiby hand up to 100 feet or to distances |
500 feet for direct bury applications and 300 fieetplenum and riser environments with the usehefFieldShield Assist Module, Clearfie¢d’
cordless drill-driven machine. A factory ptennectorized FieldShield Pushable Connector eétem costly labor in the field and pres
reliable, consistent and guaranteed performancegatath lower installation costs. After being ialk¢d in the microduct, the sligsistar
protective housing is removed and the connectopstagether - all in seconds, providing a costetife, techfriendly means of installir
optical fiber without jeopardizing fiber protection

The FieldShield Multiport SmarTerminal extends tieach of FieldShield optical fiber to the hardemathnector marketplace. Teamin
FieldShield Pushable Connector with a field-instiallé, toolless smart housing that provides a water tight deateases installation ¢
maintenance time, while providing superior durapitind reliability in the drop segment of the netivoThese new solutions, FieldShi
Hardened Connectors and the FieldShield Multipona& erminal, bring together the advantages of hmerdeconnector technology with
ease of use and cost reductions associated wittaplesfiber.

CraftSmart

CraftSmart is a full line of optical protection lfieenclosures, extending Clearfield presence infiber industry. The CraftSmart Fit
Protection Pedestals (FPP) and CraftSmart Fibae&tion Vaults (FPV) are integrated solutions, mied to house FieldSmart products a
last mile access point of the network in above-gradbelow-grade installations.

CraftSmart aims to optimize fiber protection andratje while ensuring industry standards. Utilizingthods of sealing and belayrade
protection, along with Clearfield innovation, C&fitart is a turn-key solution for the deploymenpassive optics from the central office/heac
end to the customer premise.




Cable Assemblies

Clearfield manufactures high quality fiber and ceppassemblies with an industry-standard or custespecified configuration. Industry-
standard assemblies built include but are not dichtb: single mode fiber, multimode fiber, mdiber, CATV node assembly, DS1 Telco, D
(734/735) coax, Category 5e and 6, SCSI, Token ,Ramgl V.35. In addition, Clearfiels’engineering services team works alongsid
engineering design departments of our OEM custorttedesign and manufacture custom solutions foh letthebox as well as netwo
connectivity assemblies specific to that customeréduct line.

Markets

FTTP

Fiber to the Premise (also called Fiber to the Hoim@ means of delivering the highest possiblelled bandwidth directly to the user. 1
Companys sales and marketing efforts have principally tleensed on the U.S., with investments in Canadhbtha Caribbean regions adi
in recent years.

FTTB
Fiber to the Business is the rapid expansion ddrfibervices, principally by multiple service (cabl¥) operators to penetrate the busii
marketplace.

FTT-Cell site

Fiber to the Cell site is the trend in which wissdeservice providers are fecsusing their efforts from building towers for @rage to enhancii
their coverage for bandwidth. Fiber is the medfnchoice for their upgrade. Currently, a very #irparcentage of these cell sites are se
by fiber.

DAS

A distributedantenna system, or DAS, is a network of spatiadlyasated antenna nodes connected to a common sear@dransport mediu
that provides wireless service within a geograginéa or structure. DAS antenna elevations arergiyat or below the clutter level and n«
installations are compact. Fiber may be used ¢l data from the antenna.

Build to Print
In addition to a proprietary product line desigriedthe broadband service provider marketplaceadid provides contract manufactur
services for original equipment manufacturers neggicopper and fiber cable assemblies built tar thgecification .

Competition

Competitors to the FieldSmart product lines includet are not limited to, Corning Cabling Systenms,., OFS (Furukawa Electric No
America, Inc.), AFL Telecommunications (a subsidiaf Fujikura Ltd.), Fujikura Ltd., Alcatel, Inc., and TE Connectivity, Inc. (formefyca
Electronics). Competitors to the CraftSmart pradine include Emerson Network Power, a subsidiafifEmerson Electric Co., and Cha
Industries, Ltd. Competitors to FieldShield inauéirnco Duraline and M2FX. Nearly all of thesarfs are substantially larger than Clearl
and as a result may be able to procure pricingnaressary components and labor at much lower prick=arfield believes that it ha:
competitive advantage with customers who can Igeethe cost savings the Clearview Cassette carder@nd those who require quitikn,
highperformance customized products, and that it @atpetitive disadvantage with customers who pristipseek large volume commaoc
products.




Sources of Materials and Outsourced Labor

Numerous purchased materials, components, and &eoused in the manufacturing of the Com|'s products. Most of these are rea
available from multiple suppliers. However, son@mponents and outsourced labor are purchased fraingée or a limited number
suppliers. The loss of access to some componetoatsourced labor could have an adverse effeaciusrability to deliver products or
timely basis and on our financial performance.

Major Customers and Financial Information about Gearaphic Areas
The following table summarizes customers comprididg or more of net sales for the years ended 8dyate30, 2014, 2013, and 2012:

Year Ended September
2014 2013 2012
Customer A 21% 23% *
Customer E 19% 19% 22%

* Less than 10%

As of September 30, 2014, Customer C accountedd of accounts receivable. As of September 3032Customer A accounted for 5
of accounts receivable.

The Company allocates sales from external custorteegeographic areas based on the location to wihiehproduct is transported. 7
following table presents our domestic and inteoral sales for each of the last three fiscal years:

Year Ended September @

2014 2013 2012
United State! $52,687,00 $50,358,000 $36,414,00
All Other Countries 5,358,001 2,995,001 1,060,00!
Total Net Sales $58,045,00 $53,353,000 $37,474,00

Patents and Trademarks

As of September 30, 2014, we had four patents gdaand four pending patent applications pendinglénand outside the United States.
have also developed and are using trademarks god to market and promote our products, includitep@ield®, Clearview® , FieldSmar
®  FieldShield®, and CraftSmar®

Backlog

Backlog reflects purchase order commitments for puaducts received from customers that have ydvetdfulfilled. Backlog orders a
generally shipped within three months. The Comphag a backlog of $3,340,000, $8,638,000, and $2080 as of September 30, 2(
2013, and 2012, respectively.

Seasonality

We are affected by the seasonal trends in the iridasve serve. We typically experience sequdwtialver sales in our first and second fi¢

year quarters, primarily due to customer budgetesyaeployment schedules, some customer geogedptuncentrations as well as stanc
vacation and holiday calendars. Sales usuallyhraageasonal peak in our third and fourth fiscalrtpus.




Product Development

Product development for Clearfietd’product line program has been conducted intgrn&lle believe that the communication indu
environment is constantly evolving and our sucakgsends on our ability to anticipate and responthése changes. Our focus is to anz
the environment and technology and work to devglogmucts that simplify our customersusiness by developing innovative high qui
products utilizing modular design wherever possiiRsearch and development are reflected in §el@eneral & Administrative expen:
and are not material to the overall expense total.

Employees

As of September 30, 2014, the Company had 185tifu#- employees. We also have several piar¢- employees and indepenc
contractors. None of our employees are covereahlgycollective bargaining agreement. We believeemoployee relations to be good.

Segment Reporting
The Company operates in a single reportable segment
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Our results of operations could be adversely affgtihow that the stimulus funds of the American Reeoy and Reinvestment Act are fu
allocated and projections are nearing completion.

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (the RAR), widely known as the “Stimulus Bill,ivas enacted in February 2009. The AF
allocated $7.2 billion in grants, loans and loamrgntees for broadband/wireless initiatives fomrumserved and underserved geograf
across the country, with these initiatives adméristl by several federal agencies. This fundirey&lable to a wide variety of organizatic
including our customers and prospective customergurchase and implement network infrastructurd services to improve broadb:
coverage. As part of the criteria establishedhgyfederal agencies administering these progrdrmagprojects to be funded through the fec
stimulus plan must be approved by the state oesfatwhich the projects will be located.

All ARRA funding for these broadband/wireless iafives was allocated to awarded applicants prithécstart of this fiscal year. The majo
of these projects were nearing completion by thieddtiscal year 2013.

National Broadband Plar's transitioning from the USF to the CAF program mayause our customers and prospective customersetaydol
reduce purchases.

In October of 2011, the Federal Communications C@sion approved the National Broadband Plan whalked for the restructuring of t
long-standing USF (Universal Service Fund). A key eletmaf this program is the transition out of the UBgram, which awards
operating subsidy to telecommunications companiesiging service to higltost serving areas, to the Connect America Fund=jGahict
would provide a capital expenditure subsidy for tvdd-out of the country’s broadband network. alidition, other universal service and inter
carrier compensation reforms scheduled to begithéhcoming years will eliminate subsidies that ieasr have traditionally relied upon
support service in highest, rural areas. Our customers or prospectigeomers may delay purchases until the financiakichpo them fror
the transition to the CAF becomes clear. To thiergxour customers or prospective customers regeieced subsidies under the CAF,
may reduce the spending associated with their gijelelay projects, or not pursue projects. Ahyhese actions may result in redu
demand for our products with these customers spattive customers.




A significant percentage of our sales in the lagtd fiscal years have been made to a small numbecusgtomers, and the loss of these mi
customers would adversely affect us.

In fiscal year 2014, Customers A and B comprisgat@imately 21% and 19%, respectively, of net salediscal year 2013, Customers A
B comprised approximately 23% and 19%, respectjvaiytotal sales. Additionally, Customer B compdsapproximately 22% of total sa
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012. dhbastomers purchase our products from time to timmugh purchase orders and we dc
have any agreement that guarantees future purclhgsasy of these major customers. The loss of @y or more of these customers,
substantial reduction, delay or cancellation inessdfrom any such customer or our inability to ecllthe accounts receivable from tf
customers, could have a material adverse effecuomusiness, financial position and results ofratiens.

Intense competition in our industry may result irripe reductions, lower gross profits and loss of rket share.

Competition in the telecommunications equipment aadsices industry is intense. Our competitors rhaye or could develop or acqt
marketing, financial, development and personnelueses that exceed ours. Our ability to competeessfully will depend on whether we

continue to advance the technology of our prodacts develop new products, the acceptance of owtupt® among our customers

prospective customers and our ability to anticipaistomer needs in product development, as wethagprice, quality and reliability of o
products, our delivery and service capabilities aadcontrol of operating expenses.

We cannot assure you that we will be able to compeiccessfully against our current or future coitgrst Increased competition fr
manufacturers of telecommunications equipment sisoburs may result in price reductions, lower gpysit margins, and increased discol
to customers and loss of market share and couldireeincreased spending by us on research and afgweht, sales and marketing
customer support.

Our results of operations could be adversely affgttby economic conditions and the effects of thesmditions on our customets
businesses.

Adverse changes in economic conditions, includirgrecent recession in the United States, havédteédsand may continue to result in loy
spending among our customers and contribute toedsed sales to our distributors and customerghéturour business may be adver
affected by factors such as downturns in econoutiity in specific geographic areas or in the ¢elmmunications industry; social, political
labor conditions; or adverse changes in the av#ithabnd cost of capital, interest rates, tax sater regulations. These factors are beyon:
control, but may result in decreases in spendingrgntustomers and softening demand for our produRéglines in demand for our prodt
will adversely affect our sales. Further, chaliaggeconomic conditions also may impair the abibfyour customers to pay for products
services they have purchased. As a result, olr ft@s may be negatively impacted and our allowafocedoubtful accounts and writeffs of
accounts receivable may increase.

Our operating results may fluctuate significantlydm quarter to quarter, which may make budgetingrfexpenses difficult and me
negatively affect the market price of our commormnsk.

Because many purchases by customers of our prodilats to a specific customer project, the skemia demand for our products can flucti
significantly and our ability to forecast sales @wedely from quarter to quarter is limited. Thigctuation can be further affected by the |
sales cycles necessary to obtain contracts to wgoplipment for these projects, the availabilitycapital to fund our customergtojects, an
the impact of the government regulation to encoairsgyvice to unserved or underserved communitigal areas or other high cost area
customer buying patterns. These long sales cyasresult in significant effort expended with msulting sales or sales that are not ma
the anticipated quarter. Demand for our projedtsalso depend upon the extent to which our custi@rand prospective customers ini
these projects and the extent to which we are teeldo provide our equipment in these projectgheeiof which can be assured. In additic
sharp increase in demand could result in actual kaes longer than quoted, and a sharp decreaskernmand could result in exc
stock. These factors generally result in fluctoragi sometimes significant, in our operating result




Other factors that may affect our quarterly opagatesults including:

. the volume and timing of orders from and shipmémtsur customers;

. work stoppages and other developments affectingpleeations of our customers;

. the timing of and our ability to obtain new custaraentracts and the timing of revenue recognition;

. the timing of new product and service announcements

. the availability of products and services;

. market acceptance of new and enhanced versions @roducts and services;

. variations in the mix of products and services @l& s

. the utilization of our production capacity and eoyges;

. the availability and cost of key components of praducts; and

. changes in the valuation allowance relating todmferred tax assets and the resulting income tagflie or expenses.

Further, we budget our expenses based in part pectations of future sales. If sales levels iradigular quarter are lower than expected.
operating results will be affected adversely.

Because of these factors, our quarterly operatsglts are difficult to predict and are likely tary in the future. If our operating results
below financial analysts’ or investors’ expectatipthe market price of our common stock may fallpby and significantly.

To compete effectively, we must continually impraasting products and introduce new products tteathieve market acceptance.

The telecommunications equipment industry is charamed by rapid technological changes, evolvindustry standards, changing ma
conditions and frequent new product and servicedhictions and enhancements. The introductionrediycts using new technologies or
adoption of new industry standards can make ouwstiegi products, or products under development, lebs@r unmarketable. In order
remain competitive and increase sales, we will rieexhticipate and adapt to these rapidly changgngnologies, enhance our existing prod
and introduce new products to address the chamgingands of our customers.

Many of our competitors have greater engineerird) @noduct development resources than we have.oéAdth we expect to continue to iny
substantial resources in product development detsviour efforts to achieve and maintain profiiasbiwill require us to be selective a
focused with our research and development expeaeditu-urther, our existing and developmstaige products may become obsolete it
competitors introduce newer or more appealing telduies. If these technologies are patented goretary to our competitors, we may no
able to access these technologies.




If we fail to anticipate or respond in a caffective and timely manner to technological depetents, changes in industry standard
customer requirements, or if we experience anyifitgnt delays in product development or introdantiour business, operating results
financial condition could be affected adversely.

We may face circumstances in the future that wilksult in impairment charges, including, but not lited to, significant goodwi
impairment charges.

If the fair value of any of our lonlived assets decreases as a result of an econtamidavn, a downturn in the markets where we satpct:
and services or a downturn in our financial perfanee and/or future outlook, we may be requiredetmord an impairment charge on s
assets, including goodwill.

We are required to test intangible assets withfinde life periods for potential impairment annlyahnd on an interim basis if there
indicators of a potential impairment. We also @guired to evaluate amortizable intangible asaptkfixed assets for impairment if there
indicators of a possible impairment. One poternitidicator of impairment is the value of our markapitalization compared to our net b
value. Significant declines in our market capiafion could require us to record material goodauiltl other impairment charges. Impairn
charges could have a negative impact on our regfitiperations and financial position, as well agtee market price of our common stock.

We rely on singlesource suppliers, which could cause delays, incesa costs or prevent us from completing custoroaters, all of whict
could materially harm our business.

We assemble our products using materials and coempesupplied by various subcontractors and sugplié/e purchase critical compone
for our products, including injected molded pamsl @onnectors from third parties, some of whomsamgle- or limitedsource suppliers. If a
of our suppliers are unable to ship critical congrus, we may be unable to manufacture and shipuptedo our distributors or customers
the price of these components increases for argorear if these suppliers are unable or unwiliogleliver, we may have to find anot
source, which could result in interruptions, ina®e@ costs, delays, loss of sales and quality domtoblems.

Further, the costs to obtain certain raw matergald supplies are subject to price fluctuations,ctvhinay be substantial, because of gl
market demands. Many companies utilize the same meterials and supplies in the production of thgioducts as we use in «
products. Companies with more resources than yshmee a competitive advantage in obtaining rawenm@s and supplies due to gre
purchasing power. Some raw materials or suppliag lbe subject to regulatory actions, which mayaféailable supplies. Furthermore,
to general economic conditions in the United Stated globally, our suppliers may experience finahdifficulties, which could result
increased delays, additional costs, or loss ofppl#r.

The termination or interruption of any of theseatienships, or the failure of these manufacturersuppliers to supply components or
materials to us on a timely basis or in sufficigoantities, likely would cause us to be unable #etrorders for our products and harm
reputation and our business. Identifying and dyaly alternative suppliers would take time, inwlsignificant additional costs and may di
the production of our products. If we fail to foest our manufacturing requirements accuratehaibtd properly manage our inventory w
our contract manufacturers, we could incur addéiocosts, experience manufacturing delays and $ases. Further, if we obtain a r
supplier or assemble our product using an altareaource of supply, we may need to conduct addititesting of our products to ensure
product meets our quality and performance standahtty delays in delivery of our product to distrtbrs or customers could be extended,
our costs associated with the change in productufaaturing could increase.




The failure of our thirgsarty manufacturers to manufacture the productsispand the failure of our suppliers of componeamits raw materia
to supply us consistent with our requirements agutity, quantity and timeliness could materidiBrm our business by causing delays, lo
sales, increases in costs and lower gross profigims

Our success depends upon adequate protection ofgaient and intellectual property rights.

Our future success depends in part upon our ptapyidechnology. We attempt to protect our prdprg technology through pater
trademarks, copyrights and trade secrets. Howekiese legal means afford us only limited protecémd may not adequately protect
rights or remedies to gain or keep any advantagemay have over our competitors. Accordingly, &warmot predict whether these protect
will be adequate, or whether our competitors watvelop similar technology independently, withoudlating our proprietary rights.

Our competitors, who may have or could developoguae significant resources, may make substaimvastments in competing technolog
or may apply for and obtain patents that will pretyéimit, or interfere with our ability to manufage or market our products. Further, althc
we do not believe that any of our products infritige rights of others, third parties may in thaufetclaim our products infringe on their rigl
and these third parties may assert infringemeinnslagainst us in the future.

We may litigate to enforce patents issued to ustamtbfend against claimed infringement of the tSghf others or to determine the owners
scope, or validity of our proprietary rights ane tiights of others. Any claim of infringement agstius could involve significant liabilities
third parties, could require us to seek licensemfthird parties, and could prevent us from manufaing, selling or using our products. ~
occurrence of this litigation, or the effect of aaiverse determination in any of this type of litiga, could have a material adverse effect or
business, financial condition and results of openat

Our failure to protect or enforce our intellectpabperty rights could have a material adverse effecour business, results of operations
financial condition.

Further consolidation among our customers may resinl the loss of some customers and may reducessdlgring the pendency of busine
combinations and related integration activities.

We believe consolidation among our customers infthere will continue in order for them to increas®mrket share and achieve gre
economies of scale. Consolidation has impactedausiness as our customers focus on completingnéssicombinations and integrating t
operations. In connection with this merger andugition activity, our customers may postpone onaed orders for our product based
revised plans for technology or network expansiending consolidation activity. Customers integrgtiargescale acquisitions may a
reduce their purchases of equipment during thgiaten period, or postpone or cancel orders.

The impact of significant mergers among our custsnmn our business is likely to be unclear untinetime after such transactions
completed. After a consolidation occurs, a customa&y choose to reduce the number of vendors frdichwit purchases equipment and 1
choose one of our competitors as its preferred @ent@ihere can be no assurance that we will coatiiousupply equipment to the surviv
communications service provider after a businessbioation is completed.

We are dependent on key personnel.

Our failure to attract and retain skilled persono@lld hinder the management of our business, esgarch and development, our sales
marketing efforts and our manufacturing capab#giti©ur future success depends to a significantegegpon the continued services of
senior management personnel, including Cheryl PariBek, our Chief Executive Officer and John P. Hillr Chief Operating Officer. We he
employment agreements with Ms. Beranek and Mr. tHdt provide that if we terminate the employmengither executive without cause o
the executive terminates her or his employmengéard reason, we would be required to make speqif@sainents to them as described in
employment agreements. We have key person lifigramee on Ms. Beranek and Mr. Hill. Further, outufe success also depends on
continuing ability to attract, retain and motivdtghly qualified managerial, technical and salesspenel. Our inability to retain or attr
qualified personnel could have a significant negaéffect and thereby materially harm our busirsssfinancial condition.
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Product defects or the failure of our products toeet specifications could cause us to lose custonmard sales or to incur unexpect
expenses.

If our products do not meet our customerstformance requirements, our customer relatiossirnipy suffer. Also, our products may con
defects or fail to meet product specifications. Aajure or poor performance of our products caelsult in:

. lack of or delayed market acceptance of our prejuct

. delayed product shipments;

. unexpected expenses and diversion of resourceplace defective products or identify and corrkeetdource of errors;
. damage to our reputation and our customer reldiipas

. delayed recognition of sales or reduced sales; and

. product liability claims or other claims for damagbat may be caused by any product defects coimeaihce failures.

Our products are often critical to the performanédelecommunications systems. Many of our suggyeements contain limited warra
provisions. If these contractual limitations areenforceable in a particular jurisdiction or if wee exposed to product liability claims that
not covered by insurance, a claim could harm ogirnass.

Our stock price has been volatile historically amgay continue to be volatile. The price of our commstock may fluctuate significantly.

The trading price of our common stock has beenmaag continue to be subject to wide fluctuationsur €tock price may fluctuate in respo
to a number of events and factors, such as quastariations in operating results, announcementedainological innovations or new prodt
by us or our competitors, changes in financialnestes and recommendations by securities analy&sperating and stock price performe
of other companies that investors may deem comfmtalus, and new reports relating to trends inroarkets or general economic conditions.

In addition, the stock market is subject to pricel aolume fluctuations that affect the market pgider companies in general, and smal
capitalization, hightechnology companies like us in particular. Thiesed market and industry fluctuations may advgraéflect the price «
our common stock, regardless of our operating perdoce. Further, any failure by us to meet or eddbe expectations of financial anal
or investors is likely to cause a decline in oumawon stock price. Further, recent economic comaktihave resulted in significant fluctuati

in stock prices for many companies, including Cield. We cannot predict when the stock markets$ e market for our common stock r
stabilize. In addition, although our common stiekisted on the NASDAQ Stock Market, our commoackt has at times experienced
trading volume in our past. Limited trading volummgbjects our common stock to greater price vitatdnd may make it difficult for o
shareholders to sell shares at an attractive price.
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Future sales of shares of our common stock in thebfic market may negatively affect our stock price.

Future sales of our common stock, or the perceptiahthese sales could occur, could have a sigmfinegative effect on the market pric
our common stock. In addition, upon exercise dstnding options, the number of shares outstandingur common stock could incre:
substantially. This increase, in turn, could dilfuture earnings per share, if any, and could efpithe market value of our comr
stock. Dilution and potential dilution, the availity of a large amount of shares for sale, arelgbssibility of additional issuances and sal
our common stock may negatively affect both thditrg price of our common stock and the liquidityooir common stock.

Anti-takeover provisions in our organizational documenMinnesota law and other agreements could preventlielay a change in control
of our company.

Certain provisions of our articles of incorporatiemmd bylaws, Minnesota law and other agreemenysmake it more difficult for a thirgharty

to acquire, or discourage a third-party from atténgpto acquire, control of our company, including:

. the provisions of our bylaws setting forth the athea notice and information requirements for shddsroproposals, includir
nominees for directors, to be considered propadyght before shareholde

. the right of our board of directors to establishrenthan one class or series of shares and todixelative rights and preferences of
such different classes or seri

. the provisions of Minnesota law relating to busgnesmbinations and control share acquisitions; and

. the provisions of our stock option plans allowimg the acceleration of vesting or payments of awap@nted under the plans in
event of specified events that result in a “chaigeontrol” and provisions of agreements with certain of ouecetive officer
requiring payments if their employment is termimbaad there is “change in contrc”

These measures could discourage or prevent a tekedws or changes in our management, even ifcgnisition or such changes would
beneficial to our shareholders. This may havegatiee effect on the price of our common stock.

Compliance with changing regulation of corporate gernance and public disclosure may result in addital expenses.

Keeping abreast of, and in compliance with, chagdaws, regulations and standards relating to gatpogovernance and public comp
disclosure requirements, including the Sarbadekey Act of 2002 and in particular Section 404lwdt Act relating to management certifica
of internal controls, new disclosures relating toriflict minerals”the regulations of the Securities and Exchange Cissiom and the rules
the NASDAQ Stock Market have required an increagstunt of management attention and external ressuie intend to invest
reasonably necessary resources to comply with eagborporate governance and public disclosuredstals, and this investment may resu
increased general and administrative expenses adivesision of management time and attention fromeneegenerating activities
compliance activities.
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We face risks associated with expanding our salasswle of the United States.

We believe that our future growth depends in ppdruour ability to increase sales in internationmakrkets. These sales are subject to a vi
of risks, including fluctuations in currency exclyarrates, tariffs, import restrictions and othedé barriers, unexpected changes in regul
requirements, longer accounts receivable paymar¢sypotentially adverse tax consequences, anareliqense requirements. In addition,
are subject to the risks inherent in conductingr®ss internationally, including political and ecamic instability and unexpected change
diplomatic and trade relationships. Currency flations may also increase the relative price ofppaduct in international markets and thel
could also cause our products to become less afbbedor less price competitive than those of iraBamal manufacturers. These ri
associated with international operations may haveterial adverse effect on our revenue from otscassociated with international sales.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Clearfield leases a 46,583 square foot facility5d80 Nathan Lane North in Plymouth, Minnesota cstitej of our corporate office
manufacturing and warehouse space. The origiageleommenced on July 1, 2006, with rent commeraminjovember 1, 2006. On Ma
28, 2013, the Company entered into an amendmehetoriginal lease agreement that expanded itedesgace as of April 1, 2013 by 16,
square feet (which included approximately 9,561asgufeet that was already being used by the Compamguant to previous licer
agreements for this facility). This amendment alsbthe Compang’pro rata share of certain expenses for suchiadgitieased space, set
base rent for the expanded lease space for thenéenaf the term, and extended the term of thedamtil February 28, 2015.

On September 9, 2014, the Company entered intase lender which the Company will lease Suite 1a@eénbuilding commonly known as
7050 Winnetka Avenue North, Brooklyn Park, Minn@sas its new headquarters. The lease term wilheamce on the later of January 1, 2
or the date of substantial completion of build otithe leased premises. The Company estimated thiltincur approximately $2.1 million i
capital expenditures relating to the build out fifce, manufacturing, warehousing and distributgpace within the 70,771 rentable square
of the leased premises. The lease term is ters y@d two months after the commencement date. vwepon proper notice and paymer
a termination fee of approximately $214,000, thenfany has a ontéime option to terminate the lease effective atheflast day of the eigt
year of the term after the Company commenced pdyasg rent. The lease also grants the Compamgtaifjht to lease contiguous space
becomes available in the building where the leg@sethises are located during the term of the lease.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are no pending legal proceedings againstvahiing the Company for which the outcome is liktd have a material adverse effect u
its financial position or results of operations.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable
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PART II.

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOC KHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is traded on The NASDAQ Global kéasystem of The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC under siyenbol “CLFD.”

The following table sets forth the quarterly higiddow sales prices for our common stock for eaddrigr of the past two fiscal years.

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 201 High Low_
Quarter ended December 31, 2( $ 20.67 $ 13.4
Quarter ended March 31, 20 26.0¢ 17.41
Quarter ended June 30, 2C 24.8¢ 14.5¢
Quarter ended September 30, 2 16.9C 12.3¢
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 201 High Low_
Quarter ended December 31, 2( $ 53t % 4.1¢
Quarter ended March 31, 20 6.01 4.8¢
Quarter ended June 30, 2C 12.9( 5.7¢
Quarter ended September 30, 2 14.7¢ 9.7¢

The foregoing prices reflect inter-dealer priceghaut dealer markup, markdown, or commissionsraag not represent actual transactions.
Approximate Number of Holders of Common Stock

There were approximately 285 holders of recorduwfammmon stock as of September 30, 2014.

Dividends

We have never paid cash dividends on our commark std/e currently intend to retain any earningsuee in our operations and do not ini
in the foreseeable future to pay cash dividendsusrcommon stock.

Stock Performance Graph

The information provided under this subsection lshat be deemed “filed’for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exgbakct of 193
as amended (the Exchange Act), or incorporateceligrence into any filing of Clearfield, Inc. undbee Securities Act of 1933, as amende
the Exchange Act, except as shall be expressfpriktby specific reference in such filing.

The following graph shows a comparison of the Srymanulative total return on Clearfield, Ine.tommon stock relative to the NASD.
Composite index, which the Company has selectedtasad market index, and the NASDAQ Telecommuiunatindex, which the Compa
has selected as a published industry index. Thphgassumes an investment of $100 (with reinvegtroeall dividends) is made in t
Companys common stock and in each index on September@® and its relative performance is tracked throBgptember 30, 2014. 1
returns shown are based on historical results emdat intended to suggest future performance.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table describes shares of our comistonk that are available on September 30, 201gdarhase under outstanding stock-base
awards, or reserved for issuance under stock-basadis or other rights that may be granted indiheré, under our equity compensation
plans:

Number of
securities
Number of remaining availab
securities to be  Weighted-  for future issuanc
issued upon average exercis under equity
exercise of price of compensation pla
outstanding outstanding (excluding those
options, warran options, warran'  reflected in first
Plan Categor and rights and rights column)
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrs
2007 Stock Compensation P 365,55. $ 5.01 343,71
Stock Option Plan for Non- Employee Directors 7,50( 1.1€ -
Total 373,05. $ 4.92 343,71

All outstanding equity awards have been grantedyamnt to shareholdapproved plans. In addition to options, shares teyssued in tt
form of restricted stock awards and other stocletiasvards.

Issuer Repurchases

The Company repurchased a total of 16,560 sharemiotommon stock during the fourth quarter of disgear 2014 in connection w
payment of taxes upon the vesting of restrictedkspweviously issued to employees.

The following table presents the total number @freb repurchased during the fourth quarter of 8844 by month and the average price
per share:

Total number ¢ Average pric

Period shares withhel paid per shal

July 1-31, 2014 -$ =
August -31, 2014 16,56( 13.61
September 1-30, 2014 - -
Total 16,56( $ 13.61

On November 13, 2014, the Company announced thabérd of directors had approved a stock repuecphesgram under which it will bec
purchasing up to $8 million of its outstanding &saof common stock.

The program does not obligate Clearfield to repasehany particular amount of common stock during @eriod. The repurchase will

funded by cash on hand. The repurchase prograampiscted to continue indefinitely until the maximwaollar amount of shares has b
repurchased or until the repurchase program igeanbdified, suspended or terminated by the bo&directors.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data has beenwderifrom our financial statements and should bel ieaconjunction with the Financ
Statements and related notes thereto set forttein 8 and with “ManagemestDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiond &esults ¢
Operations” included in Item 7 of this Annual Retpmm Form 10-K.

Year Ended September

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Selected Income Statement D

Net sales $58,045,29 $53,353,08 $37,473,96 $35,192,53 $24,366,75
Gross profit 24,598,76 21,989,57 15,285,72 14,658,35 9,137,53
Income from operation 8,518,121  7,444,73! 4,274,88. 3,716,20! 1,123,471
Income tax expense (bene! 3,180,97¢ 2,803,17. (3,324,29)* (2,316,14)* 121,45t
Net income 543285  4,733,84. 7,701,19. 6,167,44 1,180,95.
Net income per share ba: $ 04z $ 0.3¢ $ 0.6z $ 051 $ 0.1C
Net income per share diluti $ 0.4C $ 0.3¢ $ 0.6C $ 0.4¢ $ 0.0¢
Selected Balance Sheet D

Total asset $51,847,89 $46,413,33 $37,740,33 $30,302,09 $21,360,96
Long-term liabilities - 21,10: 37,64 61,79« 78,58t
Shareholder’ equity 46,746,63 40,078,03 34,685,990 26,229,147 19,246,06

*During the fourth quarter of fiscal years 2012 &@d.1, the Company reversed a substantial porfianvaluation allowance of the deferred
assets in the amount of $3,518,000 and $2,481r@680¢ectively. These reversals increased our petrie by that amount for each of the y
ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 and contribGt@8 &nd $0.19 per diluted share for the yearpeiely.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT ’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information

Statements made in this Annual Report on Form 1brkhe Companys other SEC filings, in press releases and ingiedéments, that are |
statements of historical fact are “forward-lookstgtements.” Such forwatdeking statements involve known and unknown riskgertaintie
and other factors which may cause the actual esulperformance of the Company to be materiafffiedint from the results or performai
expressed or implied by such forward-looking staets. The words “believes,” “expects,” “anticipateseeks” and similar expressio
identify forward-looking statements. Readers argioaed not to place undue reliance on these fahdaoking statements, which speak onl'
of the date the statement was made. The risks nodrtainties that could cause actual results tiedihaterially and adversely from th
expressed or implied by the forward-looking statetaénclude those risks described in Part |, Itékri'Risk Factors.”

Overview of Business:The Company sells highly configurable fiber managetrand connectivity products to broadband serpicider:
serving the FTTP, FTTB, FTTell site markets in the U.S. and in certain liditearkets outside the U.S., currently countriehéCaribbeal
Central America and South America. The Comparsdles channels include direct to customer, thraligtribution partners, and to origi
equipment suppliers who private label its produdtike Company products are sold by its sales employees andpéamifent sale
representatives.
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Critical Accounting Policies: In preparing our financial statements, we makevegts, assumptions and judgments that can hagmiéican
impact on our sales, income or loss from operatanmsnet income or loss, as well as on the valueedéin assets and liabilities on our bal:
sheet. We believe that there are several accouptifigies that are critical to an understandinguwif historical and future performance, as t
policies affect the reported amounts of sales, es@e and significant estimates and judgments abplemanagement. While there ai
number of accounting policies, methods and estisnaftiecting our financial statements, areas thaparticularly significant include:

. Revenue recognition;

. Accounting for income taxes;

. Valuation and evaluating impairment of long-livessats and goodwill; and
. Valuation of inventory.

Revenue Recognition Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidenca afrangement exists, the product has been deliyéne fee i
fixed, acceptance by the customer is reasonabtginesind collection is reasonably assured. Thigegdly occurs upon shipment of produc
the customer. Sales of the Company’s productssabgect to limited warranty obligations that arelided in the Compang’terms an
conditions. Also, the Company offers limited dignts and rebates to customers which are recordedtisales on an estimated basis a
sales are recognized. The Company records fre@yenues billed to customers as sales and theede&itipping and handling cost in cos
sales. Taxes collected from customers and rentittgdvernmental authorities are presented on hasss.

Income Taxes We account for income taxes in accordance with Aoting Standards Codification (*ASC”) 74lhhcome Taxesunder whic
deferred income taxes are recognized based onstheaged future tax effects of differences betwtenfinancial statement and tax base
assets and liabilities given the provisions of ¢edd¢ax laws. Deferred income tax provisions aeddfits are based on changes to the ass
liabilities from year to year. In providing for defed taxes, we consider tax regulations of thisdigtions in which we operate, estimate
future taxable income, and available tax plannitrgtsgies. If tax regulations, operating results ti@ ability to implement taptanning
strategies vary, adjustments to the carrying vafugeferred tax assets and liabilities may be megli A valuation allowance is recorded w
it is more likely than not that a deferred tax assél not be realized. The recorded valuatioroatnce is based on significant estimates
judgments and if the facts and circumstances chdrggealuation allowance could materially char

In accounting for uncertainty in income taxes, weognize the financial statement benefit of a tesgitpn only after determining that f
relevant tax authority would more likely than notstin the position following an audit. For taxsjtions meeting the more likely than
threshold, the amount recognized in the finandelesnents is the largest benefit that has a gréfader50 percent likelihood of being reali
upon ultimate settlement with the relevant tax atith. The Company recognizes interest and peasliccrued on any unrecognized
benefits as a component of income tax expense.

As of September 30, 2014, the Company had U.Srdkded state net operating loss (NOL) cdogwards of approximately $8,686,000
$16,641,000, respectively. The U.S. federal NOirycBbrward amounts expire in fiscal years 2023tlgh 2028 if not utilized. The state N
carry forward amounts expire in fiscal years 2diouaigh 2022 if not utilized. In fiscal year 2008¢ Company completed an Internal Reve
Code Section 382 analysis of the loss carry-forwaadd determined that all of the Company’s lossyefarwards were utilizable and r
restricted under Section 382. The Company hasipdated its Section 382 analysis subsequent to 2868oes not believe there have |
any events subsequent to 2009 that would impadarhéysis.

As part of the process of preparing our financiatesnents, we are required to estimate our inc@xdidbility in each of the jurisdictions
which we do business. This process involves esitigaur actual current tax expense together wseasing temporary differences resu
from differing treatment of items for tax and acoting purposes. These differences result in defetax assets and liabilities. We must
assess the likelihood that these deferred taxsasskbe recovered from future taxable income @ndhe extent we believe that recovery is
more likely than not or unknown, we must estabéishaluation allowance. If the valuation allowateeeduced, the Company would recort
income tax benefit in the period in which that det@ation is made. If the valuation allowance rigreased, the Company would rec
additional income tax expense.
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During the fourth quarter of 2012, the Company regd a portion of its remaining valuation allowairteonsideration of all available posit
and negative evidence, including our historicalrafirg results, current financial condition, andqmial future taxable income. The reduc
in the valuation allowance in the fourth quarterfistal year 2012 resulted in a noash income tax benefit of $3,518,000. As a resw
recorded an income tax benefit of $3,324,000 fer year ended September 30, 2012 compared to intanexpense of $2,803,000
$3,181,000 for the years ended September 30, 201 2@14, respectively.

As of September 30, 2013, the Companghly remaining valuation allowance of approxinat975,000 related to state net operating
carry forwards. During the fourth quarter of 20ft#e Company reversed a portion of its remainirigatéon allowance primarily related to
expiration of state net operating losses. The meim@ valuation allowance balance as of Septemer2814 of $848,000 relates entirely
state net operating loss carry forwards we do rpeet to utilize. The Company will continue to ess the assumptions used to determin
amount of our valuation allowance and may adjustiluation allowance in future periods based @anghs in assumptions of estimated fL
income and other factors.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.Slidfal jurisdiction, and various state jurisdictior®ased on its evaluation, the Company
concluded that it has no significant unrecognizedtienefits. With limited exceptions, the Compaayo longer subject to U.S. federal
state income tax examinations for fiscal years maglirior to 1999. We are generally subject to WeBeral and state tax examinations fo
tax years since 1999 due to our net operating dasg/forwards and the utilization of the carryfords in years still open under statute
2007, the Company changed its fiscal year from M&Tto September 30.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Goodwill The Company’s londived assets at September 30, 2014 consisted pepsg plant an
equipment, patents and goodwill. The Company myithe carrying amount of its property, plant amgiipment and patents if events
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrgimgunt of the assets may not be recoverable. Whisrreview indicates the carryi
amount of an asset or asset group exceeds the fstiva future undiscounted cash flows expected tgdrerated by the assets, the Com
recognizes an asset impairment charge againsttaperdor the amount by which the carrying amouhthe impaired asset exceeds its
value.

Determining fair values of property, plant and gooént and patents using a discounted cash flowaddtivolves significant judgment a
requires the Company to make significant estimate$ assumptions, including longrm projections of cash flows, market conditioms
appropriate discount rates. Judgments are basbdgtamical experience, current market trends, gtiasons with external valuation special
and other information. If facts and circumstanckange, the use of different estimates and assongptould result in a materially differ
outcome. The Company generally develops thesedste based on recent sales data for existing pigdplanned timing of new prodi
launches, and estimated expansion of the FTTP marke

The Company operates as one reporting unit anéwasvihe carrying amount of goodwill annually in tharth quarter of each fiscal year i
more frequently if events or changes in circumsaniadicate that the carrying amount of the assetg not be recoverable. The Comg
determines its fair value for goodwill impairmeasting purposes by calculating its market capisilin and comparing that to the Company’
carrying value. The Comparsygoodwill impairment test for the years ended &apier 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 resulted in excéssdiae
over carrying value and therefore, no adjustmemsewnade to goodwill. During the year ended Sepézr80, 2014, there were no trigge!
events that indicated goodwill could be impaired.
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A significant reduction in our market capitalizatior in the carrying amount of net assets of a nté@mp unit could result in an impairme
charge. If the carrying amount of a reporting uniteeds its fair value, the Company would meatheepossible goodwill impairment Ic
based on an allocation of the estimate of fair @abfi the reporting unit to all of the underlyingsats and liabilities of the reporting u
including any previously unrecognized intangibleeds. The excess of the fair value of a repontinitj over the amounts assigned to its a:
and liabilities is the implied fair value of goodwiAn impairment loss is recognized to the extdrdt a reporting unit's recorded good
exceeds the implied fair value of goodwill. An iaigment loss would be based on significant estimated judgments, and if the facts
circumstances change, a potential impairment coale: a material impact on the Company’s finandetkesnents.

No impairment of lon-lived assets or goodwill has occurred during tearg ended September 30, 2014, 2013 or 2012, tasghgc

Valuation of Inventory The Company maintains a material amount of invgntor support its manufacturing operations and aust
demand. This inventory is stated at the lowerast ©or market. On a regular basis, the Compangwesyits inventory and identifies that wh
is excess, slow moving and obsolete by consideantprs such as inventory levels, expected protiiecnd forecasted sales demand.
identified excess, slow moving and obsolete invgnis written down to its market value through aigfe to cost of sales. It is possible
additional inventory write-down charges may be megqlin the future if there is a significant deelim demand for the Compasyproducts ar
the Company does not adjust its manufacturing prisoia accordingly.

Results of Operation

Year ended September 30, 2014 compared to year eddBeptember 30, 2013

Net sales for the fiscal year 2014 increased 9%5®,045,000 from net sales of $53,353,000 in 2@&@es growth was experienced fi
existing clients as well as from the developmenh@fv accounts within the telecommunications ingusithe growth in sales includes ge¢
from within Tier 3 Carriers, an emerging presenssoaiated with Tier 2 Carriers who have a natidoadprint, cable providers as well as non
traditional providers who are entering the U.S. keair The Company also recorded a growing percentdds sales from accounts outsid
the U.S., principally Canada and the Caribbearoregof Central America.

As a result of the above factors, sales in fiseary2014 to commercial data networks and broadbandce providers were 92% of net sale
$53,627,000, compared to $48,048,000, or 90%, ofsaées in fiscal 2013. Among this group, the Camp recorded $5,358,000
international sales in fiscal year 2014 versus $2,@00 in fiscal year 2013. Sales associated tuififd-to-print manufacturing for origin
equipment manufacturers outside of the telecomnatinics market in 2014 were 8% of net sales, or B1AD0, compared to $5,305,000
10%, of net sales in fiscal year 2013. The Compalocates sales from external customers to gebgrapeas based on the location to w
the product is transported. Accordingly, interoatil sales represented 9% and 6% of net salefidoydars ended September 30, 2014
2013, respectively.

The increase in net sales for the year ended SepteB0, 2014 of $4,692,000 compared to fiscal Y3 is primarily attributable to
increase of $2,363,000 in international sales. i#althlly, the Companygs net sales to our customer base of commercialrdsiteork provider:
build-toprint and OEM manufacturers, and broadband septiogiders, outside of internationally noted abowereased $2,329,000 for -
year ended September 30, 2014 mainly due to hidéerand in fiscal year 2014 when compared to figeal 2013. The Company does
have the ability to forecast future sales as regefom all customers is obtained from purchase rsrdeubmitted from time
time. Accordingly, the Company’s ability to pretlarders in future periods or trends affecting osda future periods is limited.
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Cost of sales for the fiscal year 2014 was $330QP1¥, an increase of $2,083,000, or 7% from the 3@1000 in fiscal year 2013. Gr
margin was 42.4% in fiscal year 2014, as compayetlt2% for fiscal year 2013. Gross profit incexhd2%, or $2,609,000, from $21,990,
for fiscal year 2013 to $24,599,000 for fiscal y8@d4. The year-overear increase in cost of sales and gross profitrssult of increased 1
sales. The increase in gross profit percentagfeeisesult of a higher percentage of sales assakwith optical component technologies, wil
generally have higher margins.

Selling, general and administrative expense farafiyear 2014 was $16,081,000, up 11% compared4¢b85,000 for fiscal year 2013. T
increase is primarily composed of $1,515,000 dusdiditional personnel.

Income from operations for fiscal year 2014 was5$8,000 compared to $7,445,000 for fiscal year 20M8s increase is attributable
increased net sales and higher gross margin.

Interest income in fiscal year 2014 was $96,000pamed to $92,000 for the fiscal year 2013. The gamy invests its excess cash primaril
FDIC-backed bank certificates of deposit and manayket accounts.

Income tax expense for fiscal year 2014 was $30R1lcompared to $2,803,000 for the fiscal year 2@Q@e to net operating loss utilizati
income tax expense primarily had a raash effect on the operating cash flow for the yegided September 30, 2014 and 2013. The in
in tax expense of $378,000 from the year endedeBamr 30, 2013 is primarily due to deferred taxezge resulting from higher profitabil
in fiscal year 2014. Our provisions for incomedsinclude current federal alternative minimum ¢apense, state income tax expense
deferred tax expense.

Net income for fiscal year 2014 was $5,433,000043 per basic share and $0.40 per diluted shamepared to $4,734,000 or $0.38 per k
share and $0.36 per diluted share for the year.2013

Year ended September 30, 2013 compared to year end8eptember 30, 2012

Net sales for the fiscal year 2013 increased 42%5® 353,000 from net sales of $37,474,000 in 2@&es growth was experienced fi
existing clients as well as from the developmenh@fv accounts within the telecommunications ingusfrhe growth in sales includes g
from within Tier 3 Carriers, an emerging presenssoaiated with Tier 2 Carriers who have a natidoaiprint, cable providers as well as non
traditional providers who are entering the U.S. keir The Company also recorded a growing percentégts sales from accounts outsid
the U.S., principally Canada and the Caribbearoregof Central America.

As a result of the above factors, sales in fiseary2013 to commercial data networks and broadbandce providers were 90% of net sale
$48,048,000, compared to $32,548,000, or 87%, ofsakes in fiscal year 2012. Among this group, @@mpany recorded $2,995,00(
international sales in fiscal year 2013 versus @1@00 in fiscal year 2012, an increase of $1,98h,(Bales associated with buildgadnt
manufacturing for original equipment manufactureusside of the telecommunications market in 2018w)% of net sales, or $5,305,(
compared to 13% of net sales, or $4,926,000, cafigear 2012. The Company allocates sales fromrmeed customers to geographic a
based on the location to which the product is paned. Accordingly, international sales represdmi% and 3% of net sales for the y
ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The increase in net sales for the year ended Séptedd, 2013 of $15,879,000 compared to fiscal 2842 is primarily attributable to a lar
ongoing build of a U.S. based broadband servicgigeo and accounts for $10,935,000 of the incredde Company believes the incree
demand from this customer was a result of a rampasagociated with the start of their build. Additidly, the Company net sales to o
customer base of commercial data network providaugd-toprint and OEM manufacturers, and broadband seiogiders, outside of o
largest customer and internationally noted abavereased $3,009,000 for the year ended Septemb@0338 mainly due to higher demant
fiscal year 2013 when compared to fiscal year 20M2e Company does not have the ability to forefastre sales as revenue from
customers is obtained from purchase orders sulfitben time to time. Accordingly, the Compasyability to predict orders in future peric
or trends affecting orders in future periods isitéd.
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Cost of sales for the fiscal year 2013 was $31(B®), an increase of $9,176,000, or 41% from theB®000 in fiscal year 2012. Gr
margin was 41.2% in fiscal year 2013, as compayetDi8% for fiscal year 2012. Gross profit incexhd4%, or $6,704,000, from $15,286,
for fiscal year 2012 to $21,990,000 for fiscal y8@d3. The year-overear increase in cost of sales and gross profitressult of increased 1
sales. The increase in gross profit percentatieeisesult of increasing volumes, operating efficies and product mix.

Selling, general and administrative expense farafiyear 2013 was $14,545,000, up 32% compared2@0%1,000 for fiscal year 2012. T
increase is primarily composed of $2,327,000 inhaigcommission and performance compensation ascrasgociated with higher |
sales. Additionally, equity compensation expensadased $283,000 due to a higher number of equilgrds outstanding, and proc
development costs increased $234,000.

Income from operations for fiscal year 2013 was18%,000 compared to $4,275,000 for fiscal year 20Mi&s increase is due to contini
product acceptance across both existing clientsamdaccounts that drove increased net salesdal figar 2013.

Interest income in fiscal year 2013 was $92,000pzmed to $102,000 for the fiscal year 2012. Theehse is a result of declining interest r
resulting in lower returns on our investments. Twmpany invests its excess cash primarily in FB&cked bank certificates of deposit
money market accounts.

Income tax expense for fiscal year 2013 was $208B, Income tax for fiscal year 2012 was a berft#3,324,000. The 2013 provision
income taxes includes estimated federal alternatimum taxes, state income and franchise taxéssbprimarily a result of deferred t
expense resulting from NOL utilization. During thaurth quarter of fiscal year 2012, the Companyersed a substantial portion of
remaining valuation allowance of the deferred tage#s in the amount of $3,518,000, increasing etiincome by that amount as well .
contributing $0.28 per diluted share for the period

Net income for fiscal year 2013 was $4,734,000088% per basic share and $0.36 per diluted shamepared to $7,701,000 or $0.62 per
share and $0.60 per diluted share for the year.20h2 decrease in net income was primarily duehéoreversal of a portion of the valual
allowance related to deferred tax assets in fiz38aP.

Liquidity and Capital Resource

As of September 30, 2014, our principal sourcaaqfidlity was our cash and cash equivalents andt4bon investments. Those sources -
$24,823,000 at September 30, 2014, compared tB®1B00, at September 30, 2013. Our excess cashdasted mainly in certificates
deposit backed by the FDIC and money market acsousitibstantially all of our funds are insured oy EDIC. Investments considered long
term are $8,302,000 at September 30, 2014, compar$6,770,000 at September 30, 2013. We belieeecdmbined balances of sheetir
cash and investments along with laiegm investments provide a more accurate indicadifoaur available liquidity. At September 30, 2(
the Company had combined balances of short-terimaagd investments and longrm investments of $33,125,000 as compared ta3R0(

at September 30, 2013. We had no long-term ddlgfations at September 30, 2014 or 2013, respdygtive
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The Company has current cash and cash equivaledtstertterm investments with a maturity of less than oearythat total $24,823,000
September 30, 2014. We believe these resourcmsg alith cash flow from operations, will be suféot to meet our working capital ¢
investment requirements for beyond the next 12 tmnfThe Company intends on utilizing its available casid assets primarily for
continued organic growth and potential future sigat transactions, as well as execution of theeshggurchase program adopted by the E
of Directors on November 13, 2014.

Operating Activities

Net cash generated from operations for the fiseat gnded September 30, 2014 totaled $11,52908a6h provided by operations included
income of $5,433,000 for the fiscal year ended &aper 30, 2014, which included noash expenses for depreciation and amortizati
$700,000 and stock-based compensation of $7952000g with a noreash benefit from deferred taxes of $3,020,000ar@hs between fisc
year 2014 and fiscal year 2013 in working capitis providing cash included decreases in accaantsvable and inventory of $2,810,(
and $236,000, respectively. Accounts receivablant@s can be influenced by the timing of shipméatscustomer projects and paym
terms. The decrease in accounts receivable wamply the result of significant payments receivedhe first quarter from one customer v
a large balance at September 30, 2013, and loies sathe fourth quarter of fiscal 2014 comparedidcal 2013, resulting in a substanti
lower balance at September 30, 2014. The deciaas®entory reflects the fulfilment of orders thaere in the Compang’backlog as
September 30, 2013 and also represents an adjustoneseasonal demand along with changes in stgdewels for product development |
cycles. Changes in working capital items usindidastween fiscal year 2014 and fiscal year 201Ridlerd a decrease in accounts payable
accrued expenses of $1,234,000 and an increaséh@n ourrent assets of $243,000. Changes in atequayable and accrued expel
primarily reflect a decrease related to the figer 2013 accrued bonus compensation accruals,882$200 which were paid during the 1
quarter of fiscal year 2014.

Net cash generated from operations for the fiseat gnded September 30, 2013 totaled $4,339,086h @rovided by operations included
income of $4,734,000 for the fiscal year ended &aper 30, 2013, which included noash expenses for depreciation and amortizati
$476,000 and stock-based compensation of $754:000g with a norcash benefit from deferred taxes of $2,564,000ar@hs between fisc
year 2013 and fiscal year 2012 in working capitahmis using cash included an increase in accountsveble of $4,815,000, reflecti
increased sales levels in the fourth quarter o32@hd an increase in inventory of $2,655,000. olots receivable balances can be influe
by the timing of shipments for customer projectsl @ayment terms. The increase in inventory refléggher stocking levels for existi
products due to higher demand, and for new prodffetings including Clearview Blue and FieldShiel@hanges in working capital ite
providing cash between fiscal year 2013 and fisgaar 2012 included an increase in accounts payabl® accrued expenses
$3,281,000. Changes in accounts payable and atewpenses reflect an increase to employee comgiamsacruals of $1,888,000 associi
with higher sales.

Net cash generated from operations for the fiseal ynded September 30, 2012 totaled $3,826,0@¢h @avided by operations included
income of $7,701,000 for the fiscal year ended &aper 30, 2013, which included noash expenses for depreciation and amortizati
$405,000, stock-based compensation of $471,000loasds on disposal of assets of $24,000, alortgavitoneash benefit from deferred ta:
of $3,437,000. Changes between fiscal year 20@iZiacal year 2011 in working capital items prowiglicash included a decrease in accc
receivable of $206,000 reflecting lower sales Isval the fourth quarter of 2012. Changes betwésralf year 2012 and fiscal year 201
working capital items using cash include increardsventory of $213,000, an increase in other entrrassets of $307,000, and a decree
accounts payable and accrued expenses of $1,023tdhges in accounts payable and accrued expeeffest a decrease to emplo
compensation accruals of $639,000 related to incepayments.
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Investing Activities

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014, wd $%,455,000 in cash for the purchase of capifalpment and patents. Included in
amount were purchases for manufacturing equipnretita amount of $851,000. During the same pesiadpurchased $8,899,000 of FDIC-
backed certificates of deposit and sold $6,727@0BDIC-backed certificates of deposit. The result is aasbd in investing activities w
$3,586,000 in fiscal year 2014 as compared to DMin fiscal year 2013. In the future, the Compantends to invest in the necessary
appropriate manufacturing equipment to continuengintain a competitive position in manufacturingalility. Additionally, in conjunctio
with the lease for a new headquarters facility mmteinto, the Company estimates that it will in@pproximately $2,100,000 in cap
expenditures in fiscal year 2015 relating to thiédbout of office, manufacturing, warehousing aristiibution space within the premises.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, wd $%,037,000 in cash for the purchase of capifalpment and patents. Included in
amount were purchases for manufacturing equipnretiié amount of $947,000. During the same periedourchased $8,683,000 of FDIC-
backed certificates of deposit and sold $9,60080BDIC-backed certificates of deposit. The result is aasbd in investing activities w
$114,000 in fiscal year 2013 as compared to $900Min fiscal year 2012.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012, wd $591,000 in cash for the purchase of equipmeatpatents. Included in this ama
were purchases for manufacturing and engineeringetent in the amount of $295,000, IT equipment softlvare purchases of $129,000,
additional patent cost of $40,000. During the sgmeeiod we purchased $11,942,000 of F&:ked certificates of deposit and ¢
$2,819,000 of FDIGyacked certificates of deposit. The result wastadeerease in cash from investing activities of7$8,000 in fiscal ye
2012,

Financing Activities

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014, tapa@ny received $186,000 and $646,000 from emp#ymechase of stock through «
Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP) and the exatstock options, respectively. The Company #&#D,000 to pay for taxes as a re
of employeesexercises of stock options and vesting of restlisteares using share withholding. As a resultngtecash provided by financi
activities was $441,000.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, tmap@ny received $64,000 and $136,000 from employmashase of stock through «
ESPP and the exercise of stock options, respegtivithe Company used $298,000 to pay for taxesrasudt of employee€xercises of stot
options and vesting of restricted shares usingesiwithholding. As a result, the net cash usedharicing activities was $95,000.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012 weved $143,000 from employeqsarticipation and purchase of stock through our ESR

$142,000 from the issuance of stock as a resuéingbloyees and directors exercising stock optiome fiet cash received from financ
activities was $285,000.
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Contractual Obligations as of September 30, 2014

Payments due by peric
Less than More than
Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Operating lease obligatiol $4,244921 $ 436,82( $ 807,51( $ 756,15! $2,244,43
Purchase obligations 2,128,221  2,128,22 - - -
Total $6,373,141 $2,565,04 $ 807,51( $ 756,15! $2,244,43

Operating Leases

We have entered into various noancelable operating lease agreements for ouresffimcluding the lease in Plymouth, MN, that e
February 28, 2015 and the lease that was entetre@inSeptember 9, 2014 in Brooklyn Park, MN witle@se term that will commence on
later of January 1, 2015 or the date of substantaipletion of the leases premises, and variouseoffquipment with original lease peri
expiring between 2016 and 2025. Certain of theaeds have escalating rent payment provisionsredégnize rent expense under such le
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease

Purchase Obligation
The Company estimates that as a result of the li@tavas entered into on September 9, 2014 destiibgreater detail above, it will inc
approximately $2,100,000 in capital expenditurdstirgg to the build out of office, manufacturingamhousing and distribution space.

Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Quarterly data for the years ended September 3@} 26d 2013 was as follows:

Quarter Endei

December 3: March 31, June 30, September 3

Statement of Earnings Data 2013 2014 2014 2014
Net sales $ 16,147,62 $13,213,85 $14,362,93 $ 14,320,88
Gross profit 6,937,64! 5,720,56. 6,043,45. 5,897,10!
Income from operation 3,072,621 1,915,55. 1,858,29 1,671,65:
Net income 1,982,321 1,226,30! 1,174,84 1,049,38
Net income per share Ba: $ 0.1¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢
Net income per share Dilutt $ 0.1t $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢

Quarter Endei

December 3: March 31, June 30, September 3

Statement of Earnings Data 2012 2013 2013 2013
Net sales $ 10,265,36 $10,514,36 $13,534,76 $ 19,038,58
Gross profit 3,924,261  4,215,32! 5,629,12. 8,220,87
Income from operation 885,74 949,44; 1,796,23. 3,813,31
Net income 545,21 545,27¢ 1,146,98 2,496,36
Net income per share Ba: $ 0.04 $ 0.0t $ 0.0¢ $ 0.2C
Net income per share Dilutt $ 0.0¢ $ 0.04 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.1¢
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements:

Revenue from Contracts with Customers- In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards mo@FASB) issued guidance creal
Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC") Sectiddg6 “Revenue from Contracts with Customer$he new section will replace Section €
“Revenue Recognition” and creates modificationganous otherevenue accounting standards for specialized tctiosa and industries. T
section is intended to conform revenue accountirigciples with a concurrently issued Internatiof@hancial Reporting Standards w
previously differing treatment between United Stapeactice and those of much of the rest of theldvars well as, to enhance disclosi
related to disaggregated revenue information. Upuated guidance is effective for annual reportiagods beginning on or after Decembet
2016, and interim periods within those annual pkrioThe Company will adopt the new provisionshig iccounting standard at the begin
of fiscal year 2018, given that early adoption @& an option. The Company will further study theplications of this statement in orde!
evaluate the expected impact on its financial stetgs.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

The Company is subject to changes in market intea¢ss on cash, cash equivalents, and gkom-investments. These market risks hav:
changed significantly since September 30, 20I&reases or decreases in interest rates will hawffect on these balances. At Septembe
2014, and 2013, the Company had cash and cash adeptly and shoterm investments totaling $24,823,000 and $15,80
respectively. Most of these balances were inveistédterest-bearing money market accounts orgOmaturing within 12 months. Due to
nature of these money market accounts andsCieé believe that we do not have any material sxpoto changes in the fair value of our
equivalents and short-term investments as a rebalianges in interest rates.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

To the Shareholders, Audit Committee and Boardicéd@ors
Clearfield, Inc.
Minneapolis, MN

We have audited the accompanying balance sheetlezfrf@ld, Inc. as of September 30, 2014, and #lated statements of earnir
shareholders' equity and cash flows for the yeam #inded. We also have audited Clearfield, limtésnal control over financial reporting as
September 30, 2014, based on criteria establisheldtérnal Control - Integrated Frameworlssued by the Committee of Sponso
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSOP218amework). These financial statements arerdsponsibility of the compan
management. Our responsibility is to express aniap on these financial statements and an opingiorthe company's internal control o
financial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@dénited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finastééments are free of mate
misstatement and whether effective internal cordx@r financial reporting was maintained in all evétl respects. Our audits of the finan
statements include examining, on a test basis,eag&l supporting the amounts and disclosures irfitiacial statements, assessing
accounting principles used and significant estisiatade by management and evaluating the overalidial statement presentation. Our &
of internal control over financial reporting inckedl obtaining an understanding of internal contk@rdinancial reporting, assessing the risk
a material weakness exists, and testing and evadudite design and operating effectiveness of imatecontrol based on the assessed risk.
audits also included performing such other proceslas we considered necessary in the circumstaii¢eselieve that our audits provid
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed to provide reasonableamssuregarding the reliability of financ
reporting and the preparation of financial statetsidor external purposes in accordance with gelyeeadcepted accounting principles.
company's internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftaimeto the maintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet tlransactions and dispositions of the assetseotdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accorédamdth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanalskurance regarding prevention or timely deteatfounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company's assets that could hawaterial effect on the consolidated financiateshents.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtwver financial reporting may not prevent or détmisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, o
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the financial statements referrecabove present fairly, in all material respedts, financial position of Clearfield, Inc. as
September 30, 2014 and the results of its opemataord cash flows for the year then ended, in camfgrwith U.S. generally accept
accounting principles. Also in our opinion, Cleeid, Inc. maintained, in all material respectdeetive internal control over financial report
as of September 30, 2014, based on criteria estegliininternal Control - Integrated Frameworiksued by the Committee of Sponso
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSOY21feamework).

/s/ BAKER TILLY VIRCHOW KRAUSE, LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
November 26, 201
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Clearfield, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance she&kaffield, Inc. (a Minnesota corporation) (the f@many”)as of September 30, 2013 ;
2012, and the related statements of earnings, lshlders’equity, and cash flows for each of the two yearthanperiod ended September
2013. These financial statements are the respdihsibf the Companys management. Our responsibility is to express @nian on thes
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebta@asonable assurance about whether the finaptaggments are free of mate
misstatement. We were not engaged to perform ait afidhe Companys internal control over financial reporting. Ourdés includet
consideration of internal control over financiapoeting as a basis for designing audit procedurasdre appropriate in the circumstances
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion onefffiectiveness of the Compasyinternal control over financial reporting. Accmgly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includesmxiag, on a test basis, evidence supporting theusms and disclosures in the finan
statements, assessing the accounting principles ars# significant estimates made by managementelisas evaluating the overall financ
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referrecabove present fairly, in all material respedts, financial position of Clearfield, Inc. as
September 30, 2013 and 2012, and the results op#sations and its cash flows for each of the years in the period ended Septembe
2013 in conformity with accounting principles geaibr accepted in the United States of America.

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
November 21, 201
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CLEARFIELD , INC.
BALANCE SHEETS

September 3 September 3

2014 2013
Assets
Current Asset
Cash and cash equivale $ 18,191,49 $ 9,807,95
Shor-term investment 6,632,001 5,992,001
Accounts receivable, n 5,027,85! 7,837,54.
Inventories 5,390,34. 5,626,76.
Deferred taxe 2,249,43! 4,615,111
Other current assets 543,25 317,82¢
Total current asse 38,034,38 34,197,20
Property, plant and equipment, | 2,462,25! 1,796,81,
Other Asset:
Long-term investment 8,302,001 6,770,00!
Goodwill 2,570,51. 2,570,51.
Deferred taxe 156,62: 810,57:
Other 322,13. 268,24(
Total other assets 11,351,26 10,419,32
Total Assets $ 51,847,89 $ 46,413,33
Liabilities and Shareholders Equity
Current Liabilities
Accounts payabl $ 2,104,521 $ 2,627,76
Accrued compensatic 2,749,08! 3,522,90
Accrued expenses 247,65¢ 163,53:
Total current liabilities 5,101,26: 6,314,20:
Deferred rent - 21,10:
Total Liabilities 5,101,26. 6,335,30:
Commitment and Contingenci
Shareholder Equity
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; 500 shares; neslissued or outstandil - -
Common stock, $ .01 par value; 50,000,000 sharé®ared; 13,742,964 and 12,974,263 shares issu
outstanding at September 30, 2014 and 2013, résplgc 137,43( 129,74:
Additional paic-in capital 56,036,98 54,808,92
Accumulated deficit (9,427,78) (14,860,63)
Total shareholders’ equity 46,746,63 40,078,03
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 51,847,89 $ 46,413,33

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetfirancial statements.
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Net sales

Cost of sales
Gross profit

Operating expenst

Selling, general and administrative
Income from operations

Interest incomt

Income before income tax

Income tax expense (benefit)
Net income

Net income per share Basic
Net income per share Diluted

Shares used in calculation of net income per sl

Basic
Diluted

CLEARFIELD , INC.
STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
September 3 September 3 September 3
2014 2013 2012

$ 58,045,29 $ 53,353,08 $ 37,473,96

33,446,52  31,363,50  22,188,24

24,598,76 21,989,57 15,285,72

16,080,64 14,544,84 11,010,84
8,518,12 7,444,73 4,274,88.

95,70¢ 92,28 102,01

8,613,82! 7,537,011 4,376,89!

3,180,97! 2,803,17. (3,324,29)
$ 543285 $ 4,73384 % 7,701,119

$ 04z % 0.3t $ 0.62
$ 04C $ 0.3¢€ $ 0.6C

12,916,27 12,527,15 12,371,37
13,601,59  13,078,93 12,790,16

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetfirancial statements.
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CLEARFIELD , INC.

STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Common Stocl Additional Accumulater Total shareholders’
Shares  Amount paic-in capita equity
Balance at September 30, 201 12,270,69 $122,70° $ 53,402,13 $(27,295 67) $ 26,229,17
Stocl-based compensation expel - 467,12( 467,12(
Restricted stock issuance, | 359, OO( 3,59( - 3,59(
Employee stock purchase pl 28,92¢ 28¢ 142,25: - 142 ,54.
Exercise of stock options, net of shares exchafmyegayment
and tax withholding 171,48( 1,71¢ 140,56¢ - 142,28«
Net income - - - 7,701,19. 7,701,19
Balance at September 30, 2012 12,830,10 128,30: 54,152,08 (19,594 48) 34,685,90
Stocl-based compensation expel - - 753,72 753,72’
Restricted stock issuance, | 4,09( 41 25 - 66
Employee stock purchase pl 35,597 35€ 135,62! - 135,98:
Exercise of stock options, net of shares exchafmegaymen 139,45! 1,394 62,60¢ - 64,00(
Tax withholding related to vesting of restrictedcdt grants anc
exercise of stock optior (34,979 (349 (297,639 - (297,98))
Excess tax benefit of stock options exerci - - 2,50¢ - 2,50¢
Net income - - - 4,733,84 4,733,84
Balance at September 30, 201 12,974,26 129,74: 54,808,92 (14,860,63) 40,078,03
Stocl-based compensation expel - - 794,86! - 794,86"
Restricted stock issuance, | 305,61! 3,05¢ (3,05€) - -
Employee stock purchase pl 17,58¢ 17¢ 185,40t - 185,58«
Exercise of stock options, net of shares exchafgggaymeni 471,60: 4,71¢ 641,73 - 646,45!
Tax withholding related to vesting of restrictedcdt grants anc
exercise of stock optior (26,10¢6) (2617) (399,369 - (399,629
Excess tax benefit of stock options exerci - - 8,47¢ 8,47¢
Net income - 5,432, 85‘ 5,432,85.
Balance at September 30, 201 13,742,96. $137 43( $ 56,036,98 $ (9,427,78) $ 46,746,63

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.

32




CLEARFIELD , INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash praVicle operating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic
Deferred income taxe
Loss on sale of asse
Stoclk-based compensation expel
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivable, n
Inventories
Other current asse
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of property and equipir
Purchase of investmer
Proceeds from sale of property and equipn
Patent addition
Sale of investments

Net cash used in investing activiti

Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under emelstock purchase pl:
Proceeds from issuance of common st
Excess tax beneffrom exercise of stock optiol

Tax withholding related to vesting of restrictedcdt grants and exercise of stock option:

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivi
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental cash flow informatic
Cash paid during the year for income taxes

Non-cash financing activitie
Cashless exercise of stock options

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
September 3 September 3( September 3

2014

2013

2012

$ 543285 $ 4,733,84 % 7,701,19

699,86 476,40( 404,76!
3,019,62! 2,564,04'  (3,436,93)
12,80¢ 15,38¢ 23,64
794,86t 753,72 470,71
2,809,68  (4,814,90) 206,22
236,42,  (2,655,15I) (212,85))
(243,339 (15,15) (307,410)
(1,234,03)  3,280,86/  (1,023,01)
11,528,75 4,339,056/ 3,826,33
(1,418,46)  (1,018,45) (550,61
(8,899,00)  (8,683,00) (11,942,00)
40,90¢ 6,50( -
(36,544 (18,85 (40,429
6,727,000 9,600,000 2,819,001
(3,586,09) (113,800 (9,714,04)
185,58 135,98: 142,54
646,45: 64,06t 142,28
8,47t 2,50¢ -
(399,629 (297,989 -
440,88: (95,430) 284,82
8,383,531 4,129,81.  (5,602,88)
9,807,95  5,678,14  11,281,02
$ 18,19149 $ 9,807,95 $ 5,678,14
361,28 153,64 163,75
297,88: 242,84 51,22¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetfirancial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES

Description of Business:Clearfield, Inc., (the Company) is a manufactureracbroad range of standard and custom passiveectinity
products to customers throughout the United Staféese products include fiber distribution systeamtical components, Outside Plant (C
cabinets, and fiber and copper cable assembli¢ssémae the communication service provider, inalgdiiber-to-thePremises (FTTP), lar
enterprise, and original equipment manufactureESM®) markets.

Revenue Recognition:Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidenca afrangement exists, the product has been delivéne fee i
fixed, acceptance by the customer is reasonabtginesind collection is reasonably assured. Thigegaly occurs upon shipment of produc
the customer. Sales of the Company’s productssabgect to limited warranty obligations that arelided in the Compang’terms an
conditions. Also, the Company offers limited dignts and rebates to customers which are recordedtisales on an estimated basis a
sales are recognized. The Company records fre@yenues billed to customers as sales and theede&itipping and handling cost in cos
sales. Taxes collected from customers and rentittgdvernmental authorities are presented on hasis.

Cash and Cash EquivalentsThe Company considers all highly liquid investmentith original maturities of three months or leesbe cas
equivalents. Cash equivalents at September 3@ 20d 2013 consist entirely of short-term moneykeisaccounts.

The Company maintains cash balances at severalfadanstitutions, and at times, such balancegeddnsured limits. The Company has
experienced any losses in such accounts and bglieigenot exposed to any significant credit mskcash and cash equivalents.

Investments: The Company currently invests its excess cash ik bartificates of deposit (CB) that are fully insured by the Federal Deg
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) with a term of not mtnan three years. C®With original maturities of more than three manéne reported
held-tomaturity investments and are recorded at amortipst] which approximates fair value due to the igége risk of changes in value ¢
to interest rates. The maturity dates of our Cid&s as follows:

September 3 September 3

2014 2013
Less than one ye: $ 6,632,000$ 5,992,00
1-3 years 8,302,001 6,770,00!
Total $ 14,934,00 $ 12,762,00

Accounts Receivable:Credit is extended based on the evaluation of aomes’s financial condition and collateral is generallgt
required. Accounts that are outstanding longen tthee contractual payment terms are considered hest The Company does not chi
interest on past due receivables. The Companyrdetes its allowance by considering a number ofdia; including the length of time tre
receivables are past due, the Company’s previcss history, the customer'current ability to pay its obligation to the Caany, and th
condition of the general economy and the industrywaole. The Company writes off accounts recewvabhen they become uncollecti
payments subsequently received on such receivabtesredited to the allowance for doubtful accourise allowance for doubtful accou
was $97,950 at both September 30, 2014 and Sept&0h2013.
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NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES - Continued

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: The financial statements include the following figgl instruments: cash and cash equivalents, shc
term investments, long-term investments, accougtsivable, accounts payable and accrued expefbsr than longerm investments, :
financial instruments’ carrying values approximéé values because of the short-term nature ofitlseuments. Long-term investments
carrying value approximates fair value due to tegligible risk of changes in value due to intereg¢s.

Inventories: Inventories consist of finished goods, raw matsriahd work in process and are stated at the loWeaverage cost (whic
approximates first in, first out) or market. Intery is valued using material costs, labor chargesl, allocated factory overhead charges
consists of the following:

September 3 September 3

2014 2013
Raw materials $ 3,729,161 $ 4,110,22.
Work-in-process 292,55 494,98
Finished goods 1,368,62! 1,021,56!

$ 5,390,34:$ 5,626,76

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or markeh a regular basis, the Company reviews its itorgrand identifies that which is excess, ¢
moving, and obsolete by considering factors suahwmntory levels, expected product life, and fated sales demand. Any identified exc
slow moving, and obsolete inventory is written dawrits market value through a charge to cost l&fssalt is possible that additional invent
write-down charges may be required in the fututhédre is a significant decline in demand for tlempanys products and the Company ¢
not adjust its manufacturing production accordingly

Property, Plant and Equipment; Property, plant and equipment are recorded at Rigiificant additions or improvements extendisgea
lives are capitalized, while repairs and mainteraae charged to expense when incurred. Depretiaiprovided in amounts sufficient
relate the cost of assets to operations over &stimated useful lives. Leasehold improvementsaarertized over the shorter of the remail
term of the lease or estimated life of the asEstimated useful lives of the assets are as follows

Years
Equipment 3-7
Leasehold improvemen 7 - 1Qor life of leas
Vehicles 3
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NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES — Continued
Property, plant and equipment consist of the foihagy

September 3 September 3

2014 2013
Manufacturing Equipmer $ 3,057,66' $ 2,404,79
Office Equipmen 1,985,40 1,862,84
Leasehold Improvemen 320,21¢ 127,88:
Vehicles 192,32: 154,94!

5,555,61 4,550,47
Less accumulated depreciation 3,093,36: 2,753,66!

$ 246225 $ 1,796,81

Depreciation expens $ 699,30t $ 475,52

Goodwill and Patents: The Company operates as one reporting unit anéwevihe carrying amount of goodwill annually in fbarth quarte
of each fiscal year and more frequently if eventscleanges in circumstances indicate that the aagrgimount of the assets may no
recoverable. The Company determines its fair vdtiwegoodwill impairment testing purposes by cadting its market capitalization a
comparing that to the Company’s carrying valuee Tompanys goodwill impairment test for the years ended &apier 30, 2014, 2013 ¢
2012 resulted in excess fair value over carryinge/and therefore, no adjustments were made towgtioduring the year ended Septem
30, 2014, there were no triggering events thatatgid goodwill could be impaired.

A significant reduction in our market capitalizatior in the carrying amount of net assets of a ntémp unit could result in an impairme
charge. If the carrying amount of a reporting umiteeds its fair value, the Company would meath&epossible goodwill impairment Ic
based on an allocation of the estimate of fair @adfi the reporting unit to all of the underlyingsats and liabilities of the reporting u
including any previously unrecognized intangiblseds. The excess of the fair value of a repouinig over the amounts assigned to its a:
and liabilities is the implied fair value of goodwiAn impairment loss is recognized to the extdrdt a reporting unit's recorded good
exceeds the implied fair value of goodwill. An iammment loss would be based on significant estimated judgments, and if the facts
circumstances change, a potential impairment coalet a material impact on the Company’s finandetkesnents.

No impairment of goodwill has occurred during tleags ended September 30, 2014, 2013 or 2012, tasghec
The Company capitalizes legal costs incurred t@iabpatents. Once accepted by either the U.SnP@xffice or the equivalent office of

foreign country, these legal costs are amortizédguthe straightine method over the remaining estimated lives,exaieeding 17 years. As
September 30, 2014, the Company has four pateatsegt and four pending applications pending inafutk outside the United States.
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NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES — Continued

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets: The Company assesses potential impairments toritslived assets or asset groups when there is evi
that events occur or changes in circumstancesatalibat the carrying amount of an asset or aseapgnay not be recovered. An impairn
loss is recognized when the carrying amount oflding-ived asset or asset group is not recoverable aodeels its fair value. The carry
amount of a londived asset or asset group is not recoverabledkiteeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flowsoteg to result from tl
use and eventual disposition of the asset or @ssap. Any required impairment loss is measurethasamount by which the carrying amc
of a longlived asset or asset group exceeds its fair vahdeigrecorded as a reduction in the carrying valuthe related asset or asset gi
and a charge to operating results. No impairméltrm-lived assets has occurred during the yeade@ September 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012

Income Taxes:The Company records income taxes in accordancethgthiability method of accounting. Deferred taxae recognized for t
estimated taxes ultimately payable or recoverablset) on enacted tax law. The Company establisheduation allowance to reduce
deferred tax assets when it is more likely thanthat a deferred tax asset will not be realizali(fanges in tax rates are reflected in the
provision as they occur.

In accounting for uncertainty in income taxes, weognize the financial statement benefit of a tegitpn only after determining that f
relevant tax authority would more likely than notstin the position following an audit. For taxsjtions meeting the more likely than

threshold, the amount recognized in the finanditesnents is the largest benefit that has a grédasger50 percent likelihood of being reali
upon ultimate settlement with the relevant tax arith. As of September 30, 2014, the Company doats have any unrecognized

benefits. The Company recognizes interest andlfienaccrued on any unrecognized tax benefits @agonent of income tax expense.

do not expect any material changes in our unreeegiiax positions over the next 12 months.

Stock-Based Compensation We measure and recognize compensation expenssdl feiockbased payments at fair value over the reqt
service period. We use the BlaSkholes option pricing model to determine the wisidhaverage fair value of options. For restricteath
grants, fair value is determined as the averageepof the Company’s stock on the date of granwitifdpased compensation expens
included in selling, general and administrative enges. The determination of fair value of stbeked payment awards on the date of |
using an optiorpricing model is affected by our stock price aslveal by assumptions regarding a number of subjatariables. The
variables include, but are not limited to, the etpd stock price volatility over the term of theaads, and actual and projected employee :
option exercise behaviors.

The expected terms of the options are based owahi@nhs of historical and expected future emplogeercise behavior. The rigkee interes
rate is based on the U.S. Treasury rates at tleeadajrant with maturity dates approximately edqoahe expected life at grant date. Volat
is based on historical and expected future vaiatdf the Company stock. The Company has not historically issusddividends and do
not expect to in the future. Forfeitures for bothion and restricted stock grants are estimatdlleatime of the grant and revised in subsec
periods if actual forfeitures differ from estimates

If factors change and we employ different assunmgtio the determination of the fair value of grantfuture periods, the related compense
expense that we record may differ significantlyniravhat we have recorded in the current periods.
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NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES - Continued

Net Income Per Share:Basic and diluted net income per share is compbiedlividing net income by the weighted average nemtd
common shares outstanding and the weighted avenagder of dilutive shares outstanding, respectivélieighted average common shi
outstanding for the years ended September 30, 20148 and 2012 were as follows:

Year ended September ! 2014 2013 2012
Net income $ 5,432,85 $ 4,733,84. $ 7,701,19
Weighted average common sha 12,916,27 12,527,15 12,371,37
Dilutive potential common shares 685,32: 551,78t 418,79
Weighted average dilutive common shares outstar 13,601,59 13,078,93 12,790,16
Earnings per shar

Basic $ 04z $ 0.3t $ 0.6z

Diluted $ 0.4C $ 0.3¢ $ 0.6C

The calculation of diluted net income per commoarstfor the year ended September 30, 2012 excl@d8¢b00 potentially dilutive shai
because their effect was adtlutive. There were no potentially dilutive sharexcluded from the calculation above for the yemnde:
September 30, 2014 and 2013.

Use of Estimates:The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptedha United States
America requires management to make estimates ssuhngptions that affect the reported amounts oftsisswl liabilities, related revenues
expenses and disclosure about contingent assetgailiies at the date of the financial statengenBignificant estimates include the defe
tax asset valuation allowance, the valuation ofiouentory, rebates related to revenue recognitimal the valuation of lonlived assets ar
goodwill. Actual results may differ materially frothese estimates.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements:

Revenue from Contracts with Customers- In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards mo@ASB) issued guidance creal
Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC") Sectiddg6 “Revenue from Contracts with Customer$he new section will replace Section €
“Revenue Recognitionadnd creates modifications to various other revenesunting standards for specialized transactiodsradustries. T
section is intended to conform revenue accountirigciples with a concurrently issued Internatiof@hancial Reporting Standards w
previously differing treatment between United Stapeactice and those of much of the rest of theldyas well as, to enhance disclosi
related to disaggregated revenue information. Updated guidance is effective for annual reporiagods beginning on or after Decembet
2016, and interim periods within those annual pkrioThe Company will adopt the new provisionshig ficcounting standard at the begin
of fiscal year 2018, given that early adoption @& an option. The Company will further study theplications of this statement in orde!
evaluate the expected impact on its financial statgs.

NOTE B — COMMITMENTS AND FACILITIES

Operating Leases: The Company leases office and manufacturingife@slin Plymouth, MN for its ongoing operationshis operating lea:
as amended expires February 28, 2015. On SeptémB6d4, the Company entered into a lease undiehwiill serve as its new headquar
in Brooklyn Park, MN. The lease term will commermethe later of January 1, 2015 or the date oftsuthialcompletion of build out of t
leased premises. The Company also leases varieaegpof office equipment. For the years ended 8dqme 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012, t
rent expense was $505,000, $450,000 and $406,8p6atvely.
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NOTE B — COMMITMENTS AND FACILITIES - Continued

As of September 30, 2014, the future minimum Igesanents required under operating lease agreeramngs follows:

Year ending September ; Operating lease

2015 $ 436,82(

2016 443,21(

2017 364,30(

2018 373,40

2019 382,74t

Thereafter 2,244 43!

Total minimum lease payments $ 4,244 92!

Purchase Obligations: The Company estimates that as a result of theeldsat was entered into on September 9, 2014idedan greate
detail above, it will incur approximately $2,10000i capital expenditures in fiscal year 2015 iatato the build out of office, manufacturil
warehousing and distribution space.

Share Repurchase: On November 13, 2014, the Company announceditthébard of directors had approved a stock re@sgetprograi
under which it will begin purchasing up to $8 nalii of its outstanding shares of common stock. filogram does not obligate Clearfielc
repurchase any particular amount of common stocikgdwany period. The repurchase will be funded &ghcon hand. The repurchase prog
is expected to continue indefinitely until the nraxim dollar amount of shares has been repurchasedtibthe repurchase program is ea
modified, suspended or terminated by the boardrettbrs.

NOTE C — SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The Board of Directors may, by resolution, estdbfiom the undesignated shares different classegrgs of shares and may fix the rele
rights and preferences of shares in any classrisseThe Company is authorized to issue 500 shafrgreferred stock and 50,000,000 sF
of common stock at $.01 par value. The Companynbasssued any shares of preferred stock.

Stock-Based CompensationThe Company’s stockased compensation plans are administered by thg&usation Committee of the Bo
of Directors, which selects persons to receive dwand determines the number of shares subjeddo &vard and the terms, conditic
performance measures and other provisions of tlaedcaw

Stock Options: The Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricindehto estimate fair value of stoblased awards. The Company did
grant stock options during the years ended Septe8ihe2014 and 2013.
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NOTE C — SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY - Continued

The following weighted average assumptions were @mestock options granted for the year ended&aper 30, 2012:

2012
Expected volatility 82%
Expected life (in years 6
Expected dividend 0%
Risk-free interest rat .9C%
Weightec-average gra-date fair value $ 417

The Company has two equity compensation plans waiehused as an incentive for directors, officarg] other employees. The director’
plan was terminated in February of 2010 and 67g&ffiorized but unissued shares were removed frempltn. Options are generally grar
at fair market values determined on the date ofitgaad vesting normally occurs over a three to-figar period. The maximum contrac
term is normally six years. However, options geanto directors have a one year vesting periodaasid year contractual term. Shares is
upon exercise of a stock option are new shareg. employee plan has 343,714 shares available $oeias of September 30, 2014. A
September 30, 2014, $5,198,114 of total unrecognizenpensation expense related to mested awards is expected to be recognized ¢
weighted average period of approximately 9.9 yeadise number of options vested during the year ér@kptember 30, 2014 was 91,819
a total grant date fair value of $460,202 and agiveid average grant date fair value of $5.01. Chmpany recorded related compens:
expense for the years ended September 30, 2013, a6d 2012 of $794,865, $753,727, and $470,7Epextively. There were 76,968 st
options that were exercised using a cashless methexercise. The intrinsic value of options ex®zd during the years ended Septembe
2014 and 2013 was $7,522,553 and $1,185,501, riasglgc The intrinsic value of options exercisabke of September 30, 2014 is $2,529,127

Option transactions under these plans during thesyended September 30, 2014 and 2013 are sumthag4ellows:

Number o Weighted avera¢ Weighted averag

shares exercise pric fair value
Outstanding at September 30, 2( 1,029,17' $ 3.07
Grantec - - -
Cancelled or Forfeite (9,600 5.77
Exercised (156,05 1.97
Outstanding at September 30, 2( 863,51¢ $ 3.24
Grantec - - -
Cancelled or Forfeite (2,450 4.4:
Exercised (488,019 1.94
Outstanding at September 30, 2014 373,05. $ 4.93

The following table summarizes information concegnoptions exercisable under the equity compensatans:

Weighted average

remaining contractual life Weighted avera¢

Year endet Exercisabl (in years) exercise prict
September 30, 201 313,85: 2.63 $ 4.61
September 30, 201 711,80: 4.17 $ 2.7¢
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NOTE C — SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY — Continued

The following table summarizes information concegnoptions currently outstanding at:

Weighted
average Weighted
remaining average  Aggregate
Number contractual life exercise intrinsic
Year Endec outstandin (in years) price value
September 30, 201 373,05: 2.52 $ 4.9 $2,908,84!
September 30, 201 863,51 4.09 $ 3.2¢ $8,801,77

Restricted Stock: The Company’'s 2007 Stock Compensation Plan peroits Compensation Committee to grant other stomge:
awards. The Company awards to key employeesatstrstock grants that vest over one to ten years.

Restricted stock transactions during the yearsdSdptember 30, 2014 and 2013 are summarizedlaw$ol

Number o Weighted average
shares grant date fair valt

Unvested shares at September 30, - 363,33t $ 5.07
Grantec 9,09( 5.5C
Vested (75,13¢) 4.9
Forfeited (5,000 5.1C

Unvested shares at September 30, - 292,29( 5.11
Grantec 307,61! 13.3¢
Vested (79,390 5.1t
Forfeited (2,000 5.1C

Unvested shares at September 30, 2014 518,51! $ 10.0Z

The Company repurchased a total of 16,560 sharesrafommon stock at an average price of $13.@bmmection with payment of taxes uj
the vesting of restricted stock previously issuecmployees for the year ended September 30, 20lid.Company repurchased a tote
18,786 shares of our common stock at an average pfi $11.88 in connection with payment of taxesruthe vesting of restricted stc
previously issued to employees for the year endgde®nber 30, 2013.

Employee Stock Purchase PlanThe Clearfield, Inc. 2010 Employee Stock Purchdsé P'Stock Plan”)allows participating employees
purchase shares of the Compangbmmon stock at a discount through payroll dednst The Stock Plan is available to all employsdsjec

to certain eligibility requirements. Terms of tBtock Plan provide that participating employees maghase the Comparsycommon stock ¢

a voluntary after tax basis. Employees may purelihs Compang common stock at a price that is no less tharotiver of 85% of the fa
market value of one share of common stock at tiggnbeng or end of each stock purchase period os@hdhe Stock Plan is carried out in Six
month phases, with phases beginning on July 1 andaly 1 of each calendar year. For the phaségiidad on December 31, 2013 and
30, 2014, employees purchased 10,920 and 6,668sshaspectively, at prices of $8.28 and $14.2&pare, respectively. For the phases
ended on December 31, 2012 and June 30, 2013, gegsl@urchased 18,000 and 17,597 shares, respgcéta price of $3.82 per share.

of September 30, 2014, the Company has withheldoappately $55,544rom employees participating in the phase that besaJuly 1, 201.
After the employee purchase on June 30, 2014, B8%Bares of common stock were available for fupurehase under the Stock Plan.
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NOTE D — INCOME TAXES

Realization of net operating loss cafoyward and other deferred tax temporary differsnaee contingent upon future taxable earnings.
Company’s deferred tax assets were reviewed foeargutilization by assessing the available positive ardative factors surrounding
recoverability. During the fourth quarter of fisgeear 2012, the Company reversed a substantidiopoof the deferred tax asset valua
allowance in the amount of $3,518,000 after consideall available positive and negative eviderineluding our historical operating resu
current financial condition, and potential futuedble income. This represented a change in atoguestimate and increased our net inc
by that amount as well and contributed $0.28 pknetli share for the period. The total valuatiolovaénce released during the year er
September 30, 2012 was approximately $5.1 million.

As of September 30, 2013, the Compangemaining valuation allowance of approximately %000 related to state net operating loss
forwards. During the fourth quarter of 2014, thengpany reversed a portion of its remaining valua@tiowance primarily related to t
expiration of state net operating losses in 20IHde remaining valuation allowance balance as ofte3eiper 30, 2014 of $848,000 rel:
entirely to state net operating loss carry forwakgsdo not expect to utilize. Approximately $5@08f the valuation allowance is shoetr
and $798,000 is lonterm, against its remaining deferred tax assete Company will continue to assess the assumptised to determit
the amount of our valuation allowance and may ades valuation allowance in future periods basedloanges in assumptions of estim
future income and other factors. If the valuatalowance is reduced, we would record an incomebiaxefit in the period the valuati
allowance is reduced. If the valuation allowarcetreased, we would record additional incomeetegpense.
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NOTE D — INCOME TAXES — Continued
Significant components of deferred income tax asaptl liabilities are as follows at:

September 3 September 3

2014 2013
Current deferred income tax assets (liabilitit
Inventories $ 292,67 $ 262,16.
Accrued expenses and reser 297,33t 657,12!
Prepaid expenst (42,727 (23,427
Net operating loss carry forwards and cre 1,752,29. 3,813,42!
2,299,58 4,709,28
Valuation allowance (50,145 (94,179
Net current deferred tax asset $ 2,249,43' $ 4,615,111
Long-term deferred income tax assets (liabilitie
Intangibles $ (30,029 $ (15,779
Property and equipment depreciat 18,09: 86,29:
Net operating loss carry forwards and cre 1,531,31! 2,096,58.
Stock based compensati 57,57: 66,72:
Accrued expenses and reser 3,36¢ 7,444
Goodwill (626,019 (549,609
954,30: 1,691,65:
Valuation allowance (797,680 (881,079
Net long-term deferred tax asset $ 156,62: $ 810,57:

As of September 30, 2014 the current income tagivable was approximately $127,000. As of Septer8be2013, the current income tax
payable was approximately $81,000.

As of September 30, 2014, the Company had U.Srdédet operating loss (NOL) carry forwards of appmately $8.7 million. The U..
federal net operating loss carry forwards will egph 2023 through 2028 if not utilized. As of S&&pber 30, 2014, the Company had stat
operating loss carry forwards of approximately $1@illion. The state net operating loss carry fards will expire in 2015 through 2022 if |
utilized.

The Company completed an Internal Revenue Codeo8e282 analysis of the loss carry forwards in 2608 determined then that all of
Companys loss carry forwards are utilizable and not rettd under Section 382. The Company has not ugdeteSection 382 analy:
subsequent to 2009 and does not believe thereldfemreany events subsequent to 2009 that would inipaanalysis.

Deferred tax assets relating to equity compensdtare been reduced to reflect tax deductions ireexof previously recorded tax bent
through the year ended September 30, 2014. OerdedlOL carry forwards referenced above at Sepéer8b, 2014 include approximat
$3.7 million of income tax deductions in excespudviously recorded tax benefits for equity basedrds. Due to expiring state NGi,'ta
deductions in excess of previously recorded taebenwill not be realized. Although the additidax deductions are reflected in NOL cz
forwards referenced above, the related tax bewdfinot be recognized until the deductions redteoees payable.
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NOTE D — INCOME TAXES — Continued

Accordingly, since the tax benefit does not redtiee Companys current taxes payable in 2014, these tax berafisnot reflected in tl
Companys deferred tax assets presented above. The t&fitbehapproximately $1,289,000 as of September284 related to these exc
deductions will be reflected as a credit to adddgigpaid-in capital when recognized.

The following is a reconciliation of the federatsttory income tax rate to the consolidated eféectax rate as a percent of pre-tax income for
the following years ended:

September 3

September 3  September 3

2014 2013 2012
Federal statutory ra 34% 34% 34%
State income taxe 1% 1% 1%
Permanent difference 2% 2% 4%
Change in valuation allowan (1%) - (115%)
Expiration of state NOL’s 1% - -
Tax rate 37% 37% (7€%)

Components of the income tax expense (benefitaafellows for the years ended:

September 3 September 3 September 3

2014 2013 2012
Current:
Federa $ 115,04¢ $ 180,70t $ 87,19:
State 46,30 58,42 25,43¢
161,35 239,12 112,63:
Deferred:
Federa 2,903,111 2,455,01! (3,088,07))
State 116,51t 109,03( (348,85%
3,019,622 2,564,04! (3,436,93)

Income tax expense (benefit) $ 3,180,971 $ 2,803,17. $ (3,324,29)

The Company is required to recognize the finansiatement benefit of a tax position only after deiring that the relevant tax autho
would more likely than not sustain the positiorideling an audit. For tax positions meeting the entikely than not threshold, the amou
recognized in the financial statements is the ktrgmnefit that has a greater than 50 percentilid@etl of being realized upon ultim
settlement with the relevant tax authority. Thempany applies the interpretation to all tax posiidor which the statute of limitatic
remained open. The Company had no liability foregngnized tax benefits and did not recognize atgrést or penalties during the ye
ended September 30, 2014, 2013, or 2012.

The Company is subject to income taxes in the fé@eral jurisdiction, and various state jurisdinBo Tax regulations within each jurisdict
are subject to the interpretation of the relatedl&avs and regulations and require significant juegt to apply. With few exceptions,

Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal, state local, income tax examinations by tax auttewifor fiscal years ending prior
1999. We are generally subject to U.S. federalsaaté tax examinations for all tax years since91d@® to our net operating loss carryforw.
and the utilization of the carryforwards in yeat#l ®pen under statute. The Company changedisisaf year in 2007 from March 31
September 30.

44




NOTE E — CONCENTRATIONS

Suppliers: The Company purchases critical components for oodyxts, including injection molded parts and canoes from third partie
some of whom are single- or limitestburce suppliers. If any of our suppliers are lmab ship critical components, we may be unab
manufacture and ship products to our distributorsustomers. If the price of these componentseames for any reason, or if these supg
are unable or unwilling to deliver, we may havdibtal another source, which could result in intetiops, increased costs, delays, loss of :
and quality control problems.

Customers: The following table summarizes customers compridi®gp or more of net sales for the years ended Bdyate30, 2014, 2013, a
2012:

Year Ended September
2014 2013 2012

Customer A 21% 23% *
Customer E 19% 19% 22%

* Less than 10%

As of September 30, 2014, Customer C accountedd of accounts receivable. As of September 3032Customer A accounted for 5
of accounts receivable.

NOTE F — EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Company maintains a contributory 401(k) prafitaring benefit plan, whereby eligible employeesy mantribute a portion of the
earnings, not to exceed annual amounts allowedriuhddnternal Revenue Code. For the years endpteBiber 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012
Company matched 100% of the first 3% and 50% ofrtgt 2% of the participartt’ eligible compensation that was contributed by
participant. The Compang’'contributions under this plan were $379,630, &S and $283,600 for the years ended Septemb&034, 201
and 2012, respectively

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management carried out an evaluatinder the supervision and with the participatidrthe Companys Chief Executiv
Officer and the Company’s Chief Financial Officdrtbe effectiveness of the design and operatiothefCompanys disclosure controls a
procedures (as such term is defined in Rule 18&) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934nasnded) as of September 30, 2014. E
upon that evaluation, the Company’s Chief Executdfficer and the Company’s Chief Financial Officesncluded that the Compansy
disclosure controls and procedures were effective.
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Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control overFinancial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingraaisitaining an adequate system of internal comvel financial reporting, as such terr
defined in Rule 1345(f) of the Exchange Act. Under the supervision avith the participation of our management, inatgdour Chie
Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officave conducted an evaluation of the effectivenesswfinternal control over financ
reporting based on the framework in the 19®2rnal Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organiza
of the Treadway Commission. Based on that evaoatmanagement concluded that, as of Septembe2@04, our internal control ov
financial reporting was effective. Management egied the results of its assessment with our Audin@ittee. The effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting as of &spber 30, 2014 has been audited by Baker Tillychtiv Krause, LLP, an independ
registered public accounting firm, as stated iméfsort which is included in Item 8 of this AnndRéport on Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

No changes in the Compe’s internal control over financial reporting occuariduring the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2014t thave materiall
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallfeaf, the Company'’s internal control over financigporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART III.

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

Information required by Item 10 to be included iar droxy Statement for our 2015 Annual Meeting df®holders (the2015 Prox
Statement”)which will be filed with the Securities and Exch@ngommission pursuant to Regulation 14A within #29s after the end of t
fiscal year for which this report is filed, is impmrated herein by reference into this section.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Item 11 to be includethe 2015 Proxy Statement, is incorporated hdvgireference into this section.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by Item 12 to be includiethe 2015 Proxy Statement, is incorporated hdvgireference into this section.
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Item 13 to be includethe 2015 Proxy Statement, is incorporated hdvgireference into this section.
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 14 to be includiethe 2015 Proxy Statement, is incorporated hdvgireference into this section.

PART IV.
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) Documents filed as part of this repor

(1) Financial Statements.

The financial statements of Clearfield, Inc. atediherewith under Item 8. “Financial Statementd Supplementary Datadf this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(2 Certain financial statement schedliese been omitted because they are not requiretdapplicable, or the requir
information is provided in other financial statertgear the notes to the financial statements.

(b) Exhibits.
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Incorporated
Number Description by Reference to
3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation, of APA Opticlc. (n/k/gExhibit 3.1 to Registrard’ Quarterly Report on Foi
Clearfield, Inc.) dated November 3, 1983 and Aeticbf Amendmern10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2000
dated December 9, 1983, July 30, 1987, March 289,1Septembe
14, 1994 and August 17, 2000
3.1() Articles of Amendment to Articles of Incorporati@ated August 24Exhibit 3.1 to Registrard’ Quarterly Report on For
2004 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004
3.2 Bylaws, as amended and restated effective Febraary1999 o|Exhibit 3.2 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Forfx
Clearfield, Inc. (f/k/a APA Optics, Inc.) KSB for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1999
10.1 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors Exhibit 10.3a to Registrarst’ Annual Report on For
10-KSB for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1994
*10.2 Insurance agreement by and between the Regismdniuail K. Jain  |Exhibit 10.5 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Fatfi
K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1990
*10.3 Form of Agreement regarding Indemnification of Bb@s andExhibit 10.7 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Fatfi
Officers with, among others Messrs. Roth and Zutieer K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002
10.4 Lease Agreement dated May 31, 2006 between Bass Raklty, LL{JExhibit 10.14 to Registrarg’ Annual Report on For
and Clearfield, Inc. 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006.
*10.5 2007 Stock Compensation Plan, as amended Appendix A to the Registrarst’Proxy Statement for t
2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on Fely
24, 2011.
*10.6 Employment Agreement dated December 16, 2008 by bmtdleeq]Exhibit 10.26 to Registrant’'s Current Report onr@-
Clearfield, Inc. and Cheryl P. Beranek. K dated December 16, 2008
*10.7 Employment Agreement dated December 16, 2008 by bmtdleeq]Exhibit 10.27 to Registrant’'s Current Report onr@-

Clearfield, Inc. and John P. Hill.

K dated December 16, 2008
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Number Description Incorporated
by Reference to
*10.8 Clearfield, Inc. Code 280G Tax Gross Up Paymenin PAalopteqExhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Fd#
November 18, 2010 K dated November 18, 2010.
10.9 Clearfield, Inc. 2010 Employee Stock Purchase Plan Appendix A to the Registrargt’Proxy Statement for t
2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on Fely
25, 2010.
10.10 First Amendment to Lease and First Amendment tst imended an/Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’'s Current Report on Fd#
Restated License Agreement dated March 28, 20138ndy betwee|K dated March 28, 2013.
Clearfield, Inc. and Bass Lake Realty LLC
10.11 Standard Form Industrial Building Lease dated Septr 9, 2014 b|Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant's Current Report on F8r
and between Clearfield, Inc. and First IndusttiaP. dated September 10, 2014.
23.1 Consent of Grant Thornton LLP **
23.2 Consent of Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP **
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer (princip@xecutive officer**
Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of tlubh&nge Act
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer (principdinancial officer)**
Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of tluh&nge Act
32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Pripei Financial Office|**
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350
101.INS XBRL Instance Document *x
101.SCH |XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema **
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase **
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Labels Linkbase **
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase **
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase *x

* Indicates a management contract or compensalaryor arrangement.

** Indicates exhibit filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(t)e Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regiisthas duly caused this repoi
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

Clearfield, Inc.

Date: November 26, 2014 /sl Cheryl P. Beranek

Cheryl P. Berane
President and Chief Executive Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpwhe following persons
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities@nthe dates indicated.
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Each person whose signature appears below hereisyitodes and appoints Cheryl P. Beranek and Dafeetog and each of them, as his
and lawful attorney-irffact and agent, with full power of substitution,sign on his behalf, individually and in each catastated below, &
amendments to this Form X0-and to file the same, with all exhibits theretodaany other documents in connection therewithh wtiite
Securities and Exchange Commission, granting uasitbatorneys-irfact and agents full power and authority to do padorm each and eve
act and thing requisite and necessary to be doaednabout the premises, as fully and to all istemtd purposes as each might or could
person, hereby ratifying and confirming each aat #aid attorneys-in-fact and agents may lawfuliyod cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Signatures Title Date

/sl Cheryl P. Beranek

Cheryl P. Berane

/s/ Daniel Herzog

Daniel Herzoc

President, Chief Execuifecer

and Director (principal executive office

Chief Financial Officer (pripal
financial and accounting office

November 26, 201

November 26, 201

/s/ Ronald G. Roth Director November 26, 201
Ronald G. Rott
/s/ John G. Reddan Director November 26, 201

John G. Redda

/sl Stephen L. Zuckerman M.D. Director November 26, 201

Stephen L. Zuckerme

/s/ Donald R. Hayward Director November 26, 201

Donald R. Haywart

/sl Charles N. Hayssen Director November 26, 201

Charles N. Haysse
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We have issued our report dated November 21, 20it3respect to the financial statements includethe Annual Report of Clearfield, Inc.
Form 10K for the year ended September 30, 2014. We hecebgent to the incorporation by reference of sajubrt in the Registratic
Statements of Clearfield, Inc. on Forms S-8 (Fite B33-44500, File No. 333-136828, File No. 3338®4, File No. 33366495 and File N
333-173793).

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLF

Minneapolis, Minnesota
November 26, 201



Exhibit 23.2

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRkgistration Statements on Form S-8 (File No. 88300, File No. 333-:36828, File Nc
333-151504, File No. 333-166495 and File No. 3337BB). of Clearfield, Inc. of our report datedNovember 26, 2014, relating to
financial statements and the effectiveness of firaiecontrol over financial reporting, which appearspage 28 of this annual report on F
10-K for the year ended September 30, 2014.

/sl BAKER TILLY VIRCHOW KRAUSE, LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesot
November 26, 201



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Cheryl P. Beranek, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Clearfield, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report doescantain any untrue statement of a material facbroit to state a material f
necessary to make the statements made, in ligtiteotircumstances under which such statements macde, not misleading wi
respect to the period covered by this annual re

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,cdhner financial information included in this amhueport, fairly represent in
material respects the financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows of the registrantfasmd for, the periods presente(
this annual repor

The registrang’ other certifying officer(s) and | are responsitoieestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures |
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresgused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtsubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this annual reasrbeing preparec

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipor, or caused such internal control over finahe@orting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assaraegarding the reliability of financial repodimnd the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting princij

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtiais report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contral$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetlis report based
such evaluation; an

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsanternal control financial reporting that oceed during the registrarst’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registraridurth fiscal quarter in the case of an annyadrg that has materially affected, o
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s control over financial reportin

The registrang’ other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosbdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaemmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal controlerofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refinancia
information; anc

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesamagement or other employees who have a signifioalet in the
registran’'s internal controls over financial reportir

November 26, 201

/s/ Cheryl P. Beranek
Cheryl P. Beranek

Chief Executive Officer
(Principal executive officel




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Daniel Herzog, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Clearfield, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report doescaptain any untrue statement of a material facbroit to state a material f
necessary to make the statements made, in ligtiteotircumstances under which such statements macde, not misleading wi
respect to the period covered by this annual re

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,cdhner financial information included in this amhueport, fairly represent in
material respects the financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows of the registrantfasmd for, the periods presente(
this annual repor

The registrang’ other certifying officer(s) and | are responsitoieestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures {
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresgused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtsubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, paitidy during the period in which this annual reisrbeing preparec

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipor, or caused such internal control over finahe@orting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodimnd the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in atauce with generally accepted accounting princijy

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtiais report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contmal$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetlis report based
such evaluation; an

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsanternal control financial reporting that oceed during the registrarst’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registraridurth fiscal quarter in the case of an annyadrg that has materially affected, o
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s control over financial reportin

The registrang’ other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosbdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitasmmmittee of the registramstboard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal controlerofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refinancia
information; anc

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesamagement or other employees who have a signifioalet in the
registran’'s internal controls over financial reportir

November 26, 201

/s/ Daniel Herzog

Daniel Herzog

Chief Financial Officer

(Principal financial and accounting office




Exhibit 32
CERTIFICATION

The undersigned certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C01B4t:

1. The accompanying Annual Report on FormKL@r the period ended September 30, 2014 fully plies with the requirements
Sections 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchakgeof 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of
Company.

Date: November 26, 201

/s/ Cheryl P. Berane

Cheryl P. Beranek
Chief Executive Office

/s/ Daniel Herzog

Daniel Herzog
Chief Financial Office




